CJL/ c:i/’/usz
STATE LIBRARY

! Eia E =8

PRESERVING OUR HERITAGE, SHAPING OUR FUTURE

Alei guenm

Library Development Services Bureau Florante Peter Ibanez
900 N Street, Suite 400 P Ka: 0

P.O. Box 942837 eanycastams
Sacramento, California 94237-0001 Gregory F. McGinity
(916) 653-7532 phone Peter Mindnich

(916) 653-8443 fax Elizabeth O. Murguia

H. Eric Schockman, Ph.D.
Connie Williams

April 8, 2016
BOARD MEETING




( /r(ﬂ vrnia
u STATE L[ B RARY
m |

PRESERVING OUR H[rm\u SHAPING OUR FHTUHI

MEETING NOTICE

California Library Services Board
April 8, 2016
9:30am — 4:00pm

For further information contact:
Annly Roman
California State Library
P.O. Box 942837
Sacramento, CA 94237-0001
(916) 323-0057
annly.roman(@library.ca.gov
http://www.library.ca.gov/loc/board/agendas/agendas.html

Meeting call-in locations are as follows:

California State Library Fresno County Public Library
Stanley Mosk Library & Courts Building 2420 Mariposa Street,

914 Capitol Mall, Room 500 Fresno, CA 93721

Sacramento, CA 95814

Fullerton Public Library Huntington Beach Public Library
353 W. Commonwealth Ave. 7111 Talbert Ave.,

Fullerton, Ca 92832 Huntington Beach, CA 92648
Ontario City Library Pacific Library Partnership Office
215 E. C Street, 2471 Flores Street,

Ontario, CA 91764 San Mateo, CA 94403

Redding Library Southern California Library Cooperative
1100 Parkview Avenue 248 E. Foothill Blvd., Suite 101
Redding, CA 96001 Monrovia, CA 91016

Woodbury University

7500 N. Glenoaks Blvd.
‘Whitten 128
Burbank, CA 91504



A. BOARD OPENING

1.

2.

Welcome and Introductions

Welcome and introductions of Board members, staff, and audience
Adoption of Agenda

Consider agenda as presented or amended

. Approval of September 2015 Board Minutes — Document 1

Consider minutes as presented or amended

Board meeting date for Fall 2016 - Document 2

Discuss the date for the next Board meeting

Nomination of Board Officers — Document 3

a. Discuss the procedures for election of Board Officers

b. Consider Nominating Committee for 2017 Board Officers

REPORTS TO THE BOARD
1. Board President’s Report
Report on activities since last Board meeting
2. Board Vice-President’s Report
Report on activities since last Board meeting
3. Chief Executive Officer’s Report
Report on activities since last Board meeting
4. Broadband Update Report
Update on technology improvement grants and broadband efforts
CLSA PROGRAM ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/ACTION

BUDGET AND PLANNING
CLSA Proposed Budget for ¥Y 2016/17 — Document 4

Consider 2016/17 Preliminary Budget for CL.SA. This will include discussion of the
existing $1.8 million in funding, proposed additional ongoing funding of $1.8 million,

and potential uses of proposed one-time funding of §3 million.

RESOURCE SHARING
CLSA System-level programs — Document 5
Review and discuss System Annual Reports, FY 2014/15

. LEGISLATIVE UPDATE

1.
2.
3.

CLA Legislative Advocates’ report
Consider federal and state legislative issues - Document 6
Board reports on Legislative visits

BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 2016/17

Becoming entrepreneurial — public/private partnerships

PUBLIC COMMENT

Public comment on any item or issue that is under the purview of the California

Library Services Board and is not on the agenda

AT



G. COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS/OFFICERS

Board member or officer comment on any item or issues that is under the purview of
the California Library Services Board and is not on the agenda

H. OLD BUSINESS
Board Strategic Planning Session

I. AGENDA BUILDING
Input on agenda items for subsequent Board mectings

J. ADJOURNMENT
Adjourn the meeting




o0 NI SN ol N

—_ i ek et e ek
St R W N =D

—
0o ~J

J
21
22
23

24
25

26
27
28
29

30

31
32
33
34

California Library Services Board Meeting
September 3, 2015

California State Library
900 N Street, Room 501
Sacramento, CA

Welcome and Introductions

President Maghsoudi called the California Library Services Board meeting to order on
September 3, 2015 at 2:08 p.m. She asked those attending to introduce themselves.

Board Members Present: Anne Bernardo, Gary Christmas, Alita Huguenin, Florante Ibanez,
Penny Kastanis, Paymaneh Maghsoudi, Gregory McGinity, Peter Mindnich, Eric Schockman, and
Connie Williams. |

California State Library Staff Present: State Librarian Greg Lucas, Deputy State Librarian Gerald
Maginnity, Janet Coles, Wendy Hopkins, Cindy Mediavilla, Lena Pham, Monica Rivas, and Annly

Roman.

Adoption of Agenda

It was moved, seconded (Huguenin/Schockman) and carried unanimously that the
California Library Services Board adopts the agenda of the September 3, 2015
meeting as presented.
Approval of Minutes
Member Schockman brought up that the Minutes needed one change. On page six, line eleven,

the tenth word should have been “states” not “state.”

It was moved, seconded (Bernardo/Ibanez) and carried by a vote of 8 ayes and 2
abstentions (Christmas/Mindnich) that the California Library Services Board
approves the draft minutes of the April 28, 2015 meeting as corrected.

Board Resolutions

It was moved, seconded (McGinity/Christmas) and carried unanimously that the
California Library Services Board waives the reading of CLSB resolution 2015-01
for Sandy Habbestad.




e e e e S N

10
11
12
13
14
15

16
17
18
19

20.

21
22
23

24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33

Member Bernardo brought up that there was a typo in the resolution. In the third paragraph,
first sentence, the fifteenth word should have been “principal” not “principle.”
it was moved, seconded (Williams/ibanez) and carried unanimously that the
California Library Services Board adopts CLSB resolution 2015-01 for Sandy
Habbestad as corrected (See Attachment A).
Election of Board Officers for 2016
The Nominating Committee, Members Schockman and Williams, gave an overview of the
behind-the-scenes work they had done over the last few months. Member Schockman stated the
committee used a process set up by Sandy Habbestad that involved polling the Board on their
preference for President and Vice-President. Based on the polling, the Nominating Committee
put forward Anne Bernardo as the nominee for President and Paymaneh Maghsoudi as the
nominee for Vice-President.
President Maghsoudi announced that the Board would also consider nominations from the
floor. No additional nominations were made.

It was moved, seconded (Schockman/Williams) and carried unanimously that the
California Library Services Board elects Anne Bernardo as President of the
California Library Services Board for the year 2016.

it was moved, seconded {lbanez/Williams) and carried unanimously that the
California Library Services Board elects Paymaneh Maghsoudi as Vice-President of
the California Library Services Board for the year 2016.

Board Meeting Schedule for 2016

President Maghsoudi brought up that some of the Board members were interested in more in-
person meetings. Members Williams, Ibanez, Christmas, and Kastanis all agreed that it took
fonger to handle the Board’s business over the phone so they would prefer meeting in-person.

Member McGinity felt that one in-person meeting and one phone meeting was sufficient given
the Board’s work load. He stated that if the Legislature gave the Board more resources or
flexibility, then it would make sense to have more in-person meetings.

Library staff had recommended that the April 2016 meeting be a phone meeting and the
September 2016 meeting be in-person. Member McGinity asked why this was as the April 2015

meeting had been in-person. Annly Roman responded that in April 2015 the Board had handled
2

i



No TR SN T LY. T SR U S NG S

e e e T e S S G NI G
S U R W D = D

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

the LSTA advisory portion of their duties. Prior to April 2015 the LSTA advisory session had been
held in the fall. Staff had suggested having the fall 2016 Board meeting in-person because that
meeting would typically be the longer of the two.

Member Christmas commented that part of the reason for having the April 2015 meeting in
person was for Board members to meet with their legislators. He was wondering if that had
happened and, if so, how it went. Several members expressed that they felt in-person meetings
with legislators/staff were helpful and face-to-face meetings in April and September to meet with
legislators was suggested. Member Bernardo brought up that, although she would prefer in-
person meetings for both meetings, the benefit to an in-person April meeting was that the
legislature would be in the middle of the legislative session, whereas September is at the end.
She felt that the Board had been able to handle the LSTA component sufficiently at the April 2015
meeting and still get a feel for where the grants were going and how they were being handled.

Members Williams and Ibanez felt that it could be productive for Board members to go in one
group, have pre-set up appointments, and target legislators with specific issues. It was asked if
the State Library could put together a list of relevant issues for the Board members. Member
Huguenin suggested having taking points on particular issues that they could leave with the
legislators so that staff can be made aware of the issues and messaging would be consistent.

Member Williams asked if in January or February the State Library could discuss what the
potential issues might be and put together a packet for them. Annly Roman stated that the
legislature would reconvene in the beginning of January but would not finish introducing bills
until almost the end of February. Many of those bills would be spot bills, which would not be
amended into their final form until almost the end of March. Annly Roman stated that there
might be issues on the table from the 2015 session but it would be difficuft to tell what the new
issues would be until at least March. Connie said that made sense.

It was determined that Annly Roman would create information pieces on relevant legislative
issues for the Board to take to the legislator meetings and that she would petition the Board
members for any issues they would like incorporated into the materials.

Annly Roman summarized that the Board wanted to meet in person, in Sacramento, in early to
mid-April, and that they wanted to come up a day early to meet with legislators. Additionally, the

3




V0o =1 SN o B LY N =

G T = JHE - S NG T G R N T N0 R - T & T o e e e e e
60 ~ & i R W N = S M0 =1 SN W R W e = O

Board wanted the State Library to schedule legislator meetings on their behalf and provide them
with issues and information that could be left with legislators. Annly Roman said that she would
put forward a Doodle poli with date options for the Board to indicate when they are free.

Barbara Howison, Riverside County Library System, commented that she thought it was great
to have an opportunity to sit-in and listen to the discussion. She requested that the meeting in
Sacramento have a call-in line so that those located in Southern California could participate. State
Library staff replied that it was possible to establish call-in sites in Southern California where
people could listen to the meeting but that any call-in locations would have to be open to the
public for participation and noticed on the Agenda. Member Christmas stated that he thought it
would be useful to establish sites in Southern California and other areas around the state. State

Librarian Lucas agreed to accommodate those sites.

REPORTS TO THE BOARD

Board President’s Report
President Maghsoudi reported that she continued to attend the California Library Association’s
legislative meetings on a regular basis and she attended ALA. Additionally, the Whittier Public

Library hosted an event for the Library Foundation at which Greg Lucas was the Keynote Speaker.

Chief Executive Officer’s Report

State Librarian Lucas reported an additional $2 million to the Literacy program that the state
library helps administrate through local public libraries. He stated that he had just signed letters
adding five more libraries to the program, partially because of the additional revenue. The funds
would help with the backlog of people who want to learn to read but have been unable to
participate in the literacy program because of a shortage of volunteers.

The Governor and the Legislature also added $4 million to the $1 million that the Board
contributed to the Broadband project. Lucas was not sure if the legislature would continue to
allocate money for those kinds of technology improvement grants, but he felt the new money

showed the commitment of the administration.



O 0 1 O th B W D —

—— e e eed e el
SNt B W N = D

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

Another item in the budget was $1 million for a pilot project to conduct Career Online High
School. That program offered participants the ability to get their high school degree online. Once
a participant entered the program they had 18 months to complete it, but, depending on how
many units they already had, some had finished in as little as five months. The $1 million would
provide about 870 scholarships to cover entrance into the program.

The Career Online High School program required an assessment component prior to beginning
to make sure that the people entering the program had the discipline, capacity, and gumption to
finish. The assessment, provided by the company running Career Online High School, had an
online and an interview segment and cost around 560,000. This cost had been a barrier to
individual library jurisdictions that wanted to participafe in the program. Under the pilot project
the state paid one central assessment cost, removing the financial barrier to public libraries’
participation. State Librarian Lucas felt he was not understating it to say that the program could
be transformative. The State Library was finishing up the administration guidelines and State
Librarian Lucas thought the program would be up and running in October.

Member Williams asked who, within the public libraries, was going to shoulder the
management and financial personnel responsibility for the assessment. Janet Coles, the State
Library staff member managing the project, stated that public libraries would not have to conduct
an assessment. There was an online pre-assessment process that involved a self-assessment and
then a two week prerequisite course. These were designed to determine if the students would be
successful in the program. Then the students were interviewed by the library staff. If they passed
both those assessment segments they were eligible to receive a scholarship. Janet also clarified
that through the scholarship the student received an online coach, access to tutors, and an
academic call center as part of the Online High School Program.

Member Bernardo asked in the $1 million put toward tareer Online High School fell under the
California Library Services Act. State Librarian Lucas clarified that it was a general fund

appropriation and did not fall under the Act.

CLSA PROGRAM ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/ACTION

BUDGET AND PLANNING




W -1 Snoth I D &

| N N N O R e T T S o T T
[ e Vo B < B -~ T ¥ T T =

W L L R R N B R BD LD
R SO Yoo aa th B W

System Plans of Service and Budgets

Monica Rivas stated that the first issue to be addressed by the Board was the 2015/2016
California Library Services Act system population and membership figures. She stated that there
were very slight changes to the actual figures, and these were previously approved by the Board
at the April meeting. These changes were the withdrawal of Hayward Public Library from the
Pacific Library Partnership, the re-affiliation of the Santa Clara County Library to the Pacific Library
Partnership, and the re-affiliation of the Huntington Beach Public Library to the Santiago Library
System.

Gerry Maginnity pointed out that on the Hayward Public Library letter that there was some
incorrect information. He believed that there had been some confusion with PLF and TBR. On the
letter is said that “...in order to receive PLF public libraries are required to be members of
systems...”, but that was not true. He said that he was not sure what was intended but his feeling
was that there was some confusion with acronyms. Te receive some of the reimbursement money
for direct loans libraries did need to be a member of a cooperative library system. To get
reimbursement money for interlibrary loans you were not required to be a member.

Member McGinity asked if the Board could get some kind of report to show how the system
communication and delivery program workload and system demographics had changed over
time. He wanted to see if there was any analysis or observations that might suggest different
policies the Board should be considering. He asked if library staff could produce something,
covering the last 10 years, for the 2016 fall meeting when the Board would be considering the
2016/2017 information. Monica Rivas and Annly Roman indicated that they would have that
information for the 2016 fall meeting.

it was moved, seconded (Christmas/ibanez}) and carried unanimously that
‘the California Library Services Board approves the System Population and
Membership Figures for use in the allocation of System funds for the fiscal year
2015/16.

it was moved, seconded (Ibanez/Bernardo) and carried unanimously that the
California Library Services Board approves the CLSA System Plans of Service and
Budgets for the nine cooperative Library Systems, submitted for fiscal year
2015/16.



R = e =, T ¥ S e L O

e e e e e Y = Sy ey
[= N B 7S N =

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

RESOURCE SHARING
Broadband Update

Gerry Maginnity reported that the California State Library just finished up its first round of
grants. The State Library sent out 37 grants and those libraries are working on connecting to
CalREN. For the start of the year two process, libraries have been asked to submit their Letter of
Agency, which then gave CENIC permission to proceed ahead and do an RFP for them, by
September 15, 2015. Once that deadline passed the State Library would have an idea of how
many libraries might be participating. Last year 88 libraries completed the Letter of Agency and
about 40 went to contract, so not every library asked for a grant. About $1 mitlion was awarded
and there was over a one-to-one match so it seemed like libraries were gearing up for the
program. |

Member McGinity clarified that in the first round of grants we had more money than we had
applications. Gerry Maginnity confirmed that statement and expressed that the priority was for
the main libraries to be connected. Maginnity said that the assumptions on how that money
would be allocated were based on the fact that 88 libraries did the Letter of Agency. Staff did
learn that just because a library did the Letter did not mean they would go through to contract.

Member McGinity expressed surprise that when the request went out to libraries the priority
was the main library in any given city or county. He asked if the Board had known about the
prioritization of main libraries in advance. He thought that two meetings ago the Board had heen
clear that they wanted input about how that money was going to be allocated. Whether the
priority was the right one or not, he thought that the Board should have had a chance to weigh in
on any decisions about which libraries or communities were going to receive funds. Member
McGinity asked if consideration was being given to another set of grants and if so, would the
Board have a chance to weigh in on the priorities for those grants prior to letters going out.
Member Kastanis indicated that the Board had never taken action on grants prior to them going
out before,

Gerry Maginnity indicated that if the Library had to come back to the Board it could have some

serious ramifications for libraries proceeding to the contract phase. He thought priority should




o T e -~ U & B N T o B

[N I Y TR ' TR N T NG TR (N TR N B N B O B o R e e e T e T T e
YOG =1 v o R W N =, DY e Y Y W e O

continue to be given to the main library and the second priority would be the branches. Maginnity
asked if the Board had other priorities they should be discussing.

Member Huguenin expressed that the priority should be to increase awareness since so few
libraries went to contract. Gerry Maginnity clarified that there were lots of factors that went into
why a library did not proceed to contract. Member Huguenin suggested that they develop a way
to help the libraries whose information was incorrect or incomplete, preventing them from
proceeding with the process. Susan Hildreth, representing Califa, clarified that the issue was not
that things were done incorrectly. The Letter of Agency allows CENIC to represent the library in a
bidding process to determine the most effective or cost effective circuits. CENIC and Califa
worked closely with all the interested parties to make sure they were making the right decision
and, in some cases, as libraries delved into the process, they found existing contracts with other
providers or issues with bad timing. It was more about getting to really know the details of the
process. Libraries need to submit a Letter of Agency if they are even want to explore the project,
so they are encouraged to submit the Letters even though all of the libraries will not necessarily
make it to the end point.

Diane Satchwell, representing 49-99, Serra, and SCLC, indicated that there was a great variety
of applicants, so this process did provide an avenue for rural libraries to participate. The reason
some libraries questioned applying in year one was that they wanted to see how the process
rolled out so that they could participate in year two.

President Maghsoudi asked Member McGinity if he had any specific criteria in mind. Member
McGinity responded that he did not have anything specific but he thought the Board had wanted
to weigh in on criteria being considered. He expressed concerns about priorities if the situation
arose where the grants were oversubscribed and had more libraries applying with needs that
exceeded the allocated funds. In that case there would be a scarcity of resources and he felt that
it was the responsibility of the Board to determine how those resources were allocated.

Member Christmas remembered that the Board did talk about broadband priorities and that
there was some discussion about the approach. He thought he remembered discussion about
Main libraries but he was unsure if the Board voted or if it was just a discussion. Member
Christmas felt that since library staff had already started, it would slow the process to change the

8



N~ Nt R W N

—_— = e e e e
Syt B W M = D

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

priorities so he is comfortable moving forward. He did feel that in the future the Board should
have a more thorough discussion before the process starts. President Maghsoudi suggested

putting it on the Agenda for the next Board meeting.

interlibrary Loan and Direct Loan Programs

Annly Roman stated that the Interlibrary Loan and Direct Loan program was funded through
CLSA money until about 2011. The program had not been funded for several years but the state
library had still been having tocal libraries give reports on their statistics. Annly Roman reported
that since the program was not funded the California State Library would no longer be requesting

those annual reports.

BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 2015/16

Annly Roman reported that entrepreneurship had been discussed at the April 2015 Board
meeting and the Board had indicated that they wanted to continue the discussion. State Librarian
Lucas mentioned that the most common public/private partnerships in the library world were
Friends groups and things of that sort.

State Librarian Lucas provided several examples of community partnerships happen in
California. The city of Riverside got new computers for the library through a long standing
relationship with local law firms that trade out their desk top computers each year. The State
Library has a Lunch at the Library program with the California Library Association with about 100
libraries around the state participating. In many cases libraries participating in that program are
also partnering with local food banks and other groups. East Palo Alto, for example, brought in
Ravenswood, a volunteer team that provides medical care in a clinical format to lesser served
communities. State Librarian Lucas felt the examples show that partnerships were being pursued
by a lot of individual local jurisdictions. He was not sure how to promote that at the state level
and would welcome anyone’s ideas.

The caveat on the Career Online High School scholarships that requires, for every scholarship
the State sends to a library, libraries to come up with a scholarship on their own is an example of

encouraging building community partnerships. State Librarian Lucas pointed out that in some
9




o -1 v o s W 2

T N T NG T NG T Y6 S Y T N B NG T N DR N T SO S Sy S S e e e e
O 00 ~1 &N b Bl W N = O 0 Iy i R W N = O

jurisdictions the local economic development arm has been really interested in the Online High
School program because if people get high school degrees they will get better jobs, earn more
income, pay higher taxes, etc. He stated that he could lay out some of the different faces of
public/private partnerships if that would help focus or frame the discussion.

Member Williams commented that she thought this discussion was initiated because of Career
Online High School and relationships between public libraries and businesses, such as Gale. She
asked if the discussion would include things like the purchase of statewide online databases. State
Librarian Lucas said he hoped it would because a lot of taxpayer money could be saved by having
a statewide license for databases. He felt that there would be a benefit not only for libraries but
for public schools and state government as well. Member Williams commented that most states
have at least one statewide database and she felt that statewide databases and collaboration
between multi-type libraries should be the main discussions. State Librarian Lucas pointed out
that there was resistance from the makers of the databases because it was better for them to
have multiple contracts.

Member Williams asked what the Board would need to do to move this from a thought process
to an action process. Member Christmas liked State Librarian Lucas’ suggestion of staff coming up
with some key areas that the Board could focus the discussion around. He thought the Board
could have a more productive discussion if the State Library could come up with some ideas that
would get the word out on different partnerships.

Member Ibanez stated that even with database sharing, everyone has their own constituency
that they are accountable to in terms of how they spend their money and who gets covered by
which database. Their law school had conflicts between different campuses about who could use
which database even though, theoretically, they are supposed to be the same campus. He
expressed that hopefully they could figure out how dialogs could be started in different areas.

In regards to multi-type library collaboration State Librarian Lucas brought up a group on the
Monterey Peninsula, MOBAC, which involves every kind of library on the Peninsula including the
university, public libraries, community college, naval institute, etc. The MOBAC parthership has
every library on the peninsula talking to each other, making it easier for them to find common
ground. He is not sure how to replicate it statewide but it seems like a good first step.

10

AT



AR = 7 T VY S

e e e T e e e
St A W N = O

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

When he was in New York he asked the Librarians if they had a single library card for the New
York, Queens, and Brooklyn areas. The librarians said no; the libraries had not really
communicated in the past. They did come together, however, over infrastructure needs. Their
facilities were getting so bad that they felt the best way to sell upgrading them was to work
together. The libraries did a joint report on their needs and as a result they are now more inclined
to talk to each other and look for different ways to unite their voices. State Librarian Lucas said he
would look into how the New York dialogs started.

Tom Vose, Director of the Palmdale City Library, commented that the public doesn’t
understand why libraries are not already communicating and working together. He felt that
libraries working together would also give more leverage with legislators. Legislators from the bay
area wouldn’t care about libraries in Modoc County, but they would care about the California
library system.

Susan Hildreth commented that MOBAC, Monterey Bay Area Cooperative, was one of the
legacy, initial CLSA systems. MOBAC is a part of the Pacific Library Partnership but MOBAC was a
geographically isolated group that continued to do a lot together. PLP supported them as much as
they can. She felt that it was interesting to hear the discussion because as the resource sharing
systems have evolved over the years, depending on where you are in the state; there are still
some really tight knit individual groups that now have morphed into larger groups.

Additionally, she commented, representing the Califa group, that one of the initial responsibilities
and motivations to form the Califa Group, a 501c3 non-profit that serves the public libraries in
California, primarily, was to do aggregate buying for libraries. They continue to do that and have a
number of contracts with various vendors and they negotiate reduced prices. So they have some

of that in place and would certainly be willing to try to operate on a larger scale,

LEGISLATIVE UPDATE

President Maghsoudi reported that the California Library Association (CLA) Legislative
Committee was working with the State Library to come up with a letter that would go out to the

field on a possible construction bond, probably for the 2018 Ballot. State Librarian Lucas clarified

11




O e 1 O ot B W b e

[ S N T NG S N TR . TR N T N S 6 T S T & E N e e e e i e o
N T T o N I S e Y R N = to o B = L ¥ - L

that, realistically, 2018 was the soonest you could do a statewide campaign for a bond measure.
He did not think that, logistically or politically, 2016 made sense.

President Maghsoudi said that CLA would be sending out a letter soon with a needs
assessment for library construction money throughout the state. CLA was also working on their

legislative priorities for 2016.

PUBLIC COMMENT

No additional comments from the public.

COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS/OFFICERS
Member Ibanez reported that in November the UCLA Diversity Forum was planning an event at
the Los Angeles Public Library, Central Library to promote more diversity within the profession.

They had invited Jose Aponte from San Diego City Library to be the Key Note Speaker,

OLD BUSINESS

Annly Roman reported that the Board Strategic Planning Session had been brought to the
Board before. The suggestion was to have someone come in and advise on strategic planning for
the Board’s direction. It was something that the Board had discussed wanting to put on hold until
there was a fully appointed Board. The item was left on the agenda to keep it on the Board’s
radar for continued discussion if they would like to revisit it. Board members agreed that it would

be best to wait till they met in person to discuss strategic planning.

AGENDA BUILDING

President Maghsoudi called for any additional agenda items of interest to Board members.

None were brought forward.

ADJOURNMENT

President Maghsoudi adjourned the meeting at 3:36 p.m.

12

N



Exhibit A

California Library Services Board Resolution 2015-01
In Honor of Sandy Habbestad

WHEREAS, the California Library Services Board desires to recognize Sandy Habbestad on the
occasion of her retirement from the California State Library on July 31, 2015; and

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to honor Sandy for her 38 years of dedicated service to the California
State Library; and

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to recognize Sandy’s 13 years of exemplary service as the principal
staff for the California Library Services Board, where she: developed agendas; composed
resolutions, minutes, reports and motions; and ensured that the Board meetings complied with
California’s Open Meeting laws and operated efficiently; and

WHEREAS, it should be noted that she has also greatly benefited the Board and the people of
California in her work as the California State Library Act Program manager; and

WHEREAS, the Board wished to distinguish Sandy for her consistent demonstration of good
judgement, outstanding work ethic, and positive attitude in providing service and assistance to all
Board members, program stakeholders, and California State Library staff and patrons; and

BE IT RESOLVED, that the members of the California Library Services Board do hereby commend
Sandy Habbestad on her years of dedicated service, to the Board, the California State Library, and
the people of California, and congratulate her upon the occasion of her retirement from the
California State Library; and

BE IT FRUTHER RESOLVED, that
Sandy Habbestad
Shall be honored by the California Library Services Board for her years of leadership, service, and

contributions to the libraries and people of the State of California
on this day of 03 September, 2015

13




Document 2

INFORMATION
AGENDA ITEM: 2016 Meeting Schedule and Locations
2016 Proposed Board Meeting Schedule
Date Location Activities
Late August -Early Sacramento? Regular Business
September? Annual Budget Meeting
Election of Board Officers for

year 2017
LSTA State Advisory Council
on Libraries Meeting

Late March-Early April? Teleconference? Budget and Planning
Election of the Nominating
Committee
BACKGOUND:

California Library Services Act (CLSA) regulations specify that the Board shall conduct bi-
monthly meetings; however, Section 20118 (c) states:

“(c) Nothing in this regulation shall be construed to prevent the state board from
altering its regular meeting dates or places of meetings.”

Staff will provide members with a Doodle poll to determine the dates for 2016 meetings.
The question for Board members is when to schedule a face-to-face meeting in Sacramento.
A calendar of upcoming and future library-related events and dates is included to this agenda
item as Exhibit A.



Exhibit A

CALENDAR OF UPCOMING LIBRARY-RELATED EVENTS AND DATES

The following is a list of upcoming library-related events and dates worth noting:

2016

ARL (Association of Research Libraries) Membership Meeting

April 26-28, 2016

Vancouver, BC

SLA (Special Libraries Association) Annual Conference & Info Expo

June 12-14, 2016

Philadelphia, PA

ACRL (Association of College & Research Libraries) at ALA June 23-28, 2016 Orlando, FL.

ALA (American Library Association) Annual Conference June 23-28, 2016 Orlando, FL

éALL (American Association of Law Libraries) Annual Meeting and Tuly 16-19, 2016 Chicago, IL.
onference

IFLA (International Federation of Library Associations & Institutions) August 13-19, 2016 Coluﬁbus, OH

General Conference & Assembly

California State Legislature Adjourns for 2016

August 31, 2016

Sacramento, CA

ARL (Association of Research Libraries) Membership Meeting

September 27-28, 2016

‘Washington, D.C.

State Bar of California Annual Meeting

September 29-October
2,2016

San Diego, CA

September 29-October

WestPac (Western Pacific Chapter — AALL) Anoual Meeting 3 9016 Jackson, WY
Educause Annual Conference October 25-28, 2016 Anaheim, CA
ARI. (Association of Research Libraries) Library Assessment Qctober 31-November Arlington, VA

Conference

2, 2016

CLA (California Library Association) Annual Conference

November 3-5, 2015

Sacramento, CA

LITA ( Library Information Technology Association) National Forum

TBD

TBD

California State Legislature Reconvenes December 5, 2016 Sacramento, CA
ALA (American Library Association) Midwinter Conference January 20-24, 2017 Atlanta, GA
CSLA (California School Library Association) Annual State Conference | February 2-TBD, 2017 | TBD, CA

PLA {(Public Library Association) Leadership Academy TBD - Spring TBD

ARL (Association of Research Libraries) Association Meeting May 2-4, 2017 Philadelphia, PA
SLA (Special Libraries Association) Annual Conference & Info Expo Jung 18-20, 2017 Phoenix, AZ
ACRL (Association of College & Research Libraries) at ALA June 22-27, 2017 Chicago, IL
ALA (American Library Association) Annual Conference June 22-27, 2017 Chicago, IL
éﬁ:&; éﬁg:erican Association of Law Libraries) Annual Meeting and Jaly 1 5.—18, 2017 Austin, TX
State Bar of California Annual Meeting August 24-27, 2017 Anaheim, CA
AASL {(American Association of School Libraries) National Conference | November 9-12, 2017 Phoenix, AZ,




Document 3

ACTION

AGENDA ITEM: Nominating Committee for 2017 Board Officers

ISSUES TO COME BEFORE THE BOARD AT THIS MEETING: Consider
candidates to the Nominating Committee for 2016 Board Officers

RECOMMENDED MOTION FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE BOARD: I move that
the California Library Services Board appoint and
to the Nominating Committee to select Board Officers for 2017.

BACKGROUND:

California Library Services Act regulations, Section 20116 (a), state that, “The state board
shall annually elect a president and vice-president at the first regular meeting of each
calendar year.” It has been Board policy to elect Board officers at the last meeting of the
calendar year so the new officers may begin their term in the new calendar year.

The Board will appoint two of its members to serve on the Nominating Committee and to
report to the Board at its fall meeting the slate of Board Officer for 2017. In the absence of
regulations prescribing the form and method for electing officers, according to Code of
California Regulations Section 20127, the CLSB is guided by procedures set forth in
Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised, Chapter XIV, Nominations and Elections.




Document 4

ACTION

AGENDA ITEM: CLSA Budget for FY 2016/17

ISSUE TO COME BEFORE THE BOARD AT THIS MEETING: Consider the preliminary
CLSA budget for FY 2016/17

RECOMMENDED MOTION FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE BOARD: [ move that the
California Library Services Board adopt, contingent upon the passage of the State Budget
Act, the 2016/17 CLSA budget as directed in the Governor’s Proposed 2016/17 Budget,
totaling $3,630,000 for allocation to Cooperative Library Systems.

RECOMMENDED MOTION FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE BOARD: I move that the
California Library Services Board direct the California State Library staff to gather and
summarize input from libraries across the state for usage of the proposed $3 million in one-time
funds for consideration by the Board at the Fall 2016 meeting.

BACKGROUND:

The governor’s proposed budget, released in January for 2016-2017 fiscal year, includes a
proposal to provide $4.75 million in new funding for the California Library Services Act. This
money would be in addition to the $1,880,000 that is currently appropriated under the CLSA. Of
the $4.75 million, $1.75 million is ongoing, roughly doubling current spending under the act. The
remaining $3 million is one-time money.

Ongoing funding

Absent a desire by the board to change current policy, staff considers the additional ongoing $1.8
million subject to the allocation formulas the board has already created for the cooperative library
systems in the state. Proposed expenditure of these new ongoing funds will be reflected in the

plans of service prepared by the systems that the board is scheduled to review at its meeting this
fall.

One-time funds

The governor’s proposed budget is silent on how the $3 million in one-time funds should be
spent, largely because it is a decision that rests with the board. At the same time, cooperative
library systems and their member libraries should have the maximum amount of input possible in
determining the most strategic uses of the $3 million.




The board derives its authority from the California Library Services Act, in Article 3,
Administration, Section 18724,where one of the duties for the Board is “To expend the funds
appropriated for the purpose of implementing the provisions of this chapter. *

Latitude is given in the Act as to how the Board may allocate the funds in the following areas:

e Article 4, Local Public Library Services,
Sec. 18730. Special Services Programs.
o Any public library or combination of public libraries may submit proposals to
the state board for Special Services Programs within the service area.

e Article 5. Library System Services
Sec. 18745. System communications and delivery.
o Each system shall annually apply to the state board for funds for intra system
communications and delivery.
o Proposals shall be based upon the most cost-effective methods of exchanging
materials and information among the member libraries.

Sec. 18746. System planning, coordination, and evaluation.
o  Each system shall annually apply to the state board for funds for planning,
coordination, and evaluation of the overall systemwide services authorized by this
chapter.

The one-time funding approach has been used in the past. The governor’s 2014-2015 budget
included a $2 million one-time funding augmentation was included in the CLSA budget line item
and adult literacy. Ultimately the Board allocated $1 million of the CLSA augmentation be
divided among cooperative systems, using the approved formula, for local communications and
delivery efforts. The remaining $1 million was allocated to help libraries improve their
broadband connectivity.

Recommendation: Staff is recommending:

A. The board adopt the preliminary budget for $1.8 million in ongoing funding so that partial
payments can be made to cooperative systems as soon as the State Budget Act of 2016 is
signed.

B. Given the one-time nature of the $3 million appropriation, the board should direct State
Library staff to gather and summarize input from libraries across the state to assist in
determining the most strategic uses of the $3 million in one-time funds. Reports and
recommendations would be presented to the board at its fall meeting.

RELATED ISSUES TO COME BEFORE THE BOARD IN THE FUTURE:
Review and approve System Plans of Service and Budget for FY 2016/17.
Review of input regarding most strategic uses of the $3 million in one-time funds
Approve a plan of action for the use of the $3 million in one-time funds




CLSA Preliminary System Budget Allocations - FY 2016/17

Communications and Delivery Program

2015/16
Baseline System
System Budget Administration Total Total
Black Gold $ 120,549 | § 30,187 150,686 | $ 78,219
49-99 $ 120,587 | $ 30,147 150,734 | $ 78,244
Inland $ 306,963 | $ 76,742 383,705 % 199,287
NorthNet $ 655,785 | $ 163,946 819,731 | $ 421,844
PLP $ 556,748 | $ 139,187 695,935]19% 360,102
SJVLS $ 192,761 | $ 48,191 240,952 |'$ 125,087
Santiago $ 168,830 | $ 42,208 211,038 1% 109,595
Serra $ 216,946 | $ 54,236 271,182 1% 140,833
SCLC $ 564,831 | $ 141,206 706,037 |$ 366,789
TOTAL $ 2,904,000 | % 726,000 3,630,000 | $ 1,880,000

Totals are based on May 2015 population figures from the Department of

Finance to be approved by the California Library Services Board at its
April 8, 2016 meeting.

P:sh/my doc/Prelim system allocations 2016/17

Vv 1qiyx3



Exhibit B

Possible mechanics for expending one-time funds

The board derives its authority from the California Library Services Act, in Article 3, Administration,
Section 18724, where one of the duties for the board is “To expend the funds appropriated for the
purpose of implementing the provisions of this chapter. ¢

The Act addresses fund allocations in the following ways:

1) Article 4, Local Public Library Services, '
a) public library or combination of public libraries may submit proposals o the state board for Sec.
18730. Special Services Programs.
b) Any Special Services Programs within the service area.
2} Article 5. Library System Services
a} Sec. 18745. System communications and delivery.
i. Each system shall annually apply to the state board for funds for intra system
communications and delivery.
ii. Proposals shall be based upon the most cost-effective methods of exchanging materials
and information among the member libraries.
b) Sec. 18746. System planning, coordination, and evaluation.
i. Each system shall annually apply to the state board for funds for planning, coordination,
and evaluation of the overall system wide services authorized by this chapter.

Options for the Board to consider:

1) Allocate all or a portion of the one-time funds to the systems using the allocation formula already
approved by the board,
a) Each individual system would be required to add an addendum to their plan of service outlining
their plans for the additional funds.
b) The plans would then be reviewed and approved by the board.

2) " Allocate all or a portion of the one-time funds to the Special Services Programs component of the

Act.

a) The board directs State Library staff to gather and summarize input from libraries across the
state to assist in determining the most strategic uses of the one-time funds.

b) Reports and recommendations would be presented to the board at its fall meeting.

¢} The board approves a plan of action for the use of the one-time funds at its fall meeting.

d) The board directs State Library staff to put out a call for proposals.

e) Proposals are received, evaluated, and summarized by State Library staff for recommendations
to the board at its following mesting.

3) A combination of options 1 and 2.




Exhibit C

LIBRARY  SYSTEM

Date: March 24, 2016
To: California Library Services Board

From: Mary McCasland, Chair, Santiago Library System (SLS)
Stephanie Beverage, Vice Chair, Santiago Library System (SLS)

Re: Recommendations to California Library Services Board for proposed CLSA
funding

The Santiago Library System is grateful for the new CLSA funding the Governor has
included in his proposed budget. We appreciate the opportunity to provide input to the
Board regarding the allocation of the proposed on-going and one-time funds.

The additional $1.8 million will allow the systems to continue to provide the essential
functions of communication and delivery as well as support for the administration of
these important systems. Technology has changed the way systems share materials
and some of these funds have also been used by the systems for shared digital content
such as e-books and e-magazines. The systems are diverse. We are in support of the
current allocation formulas currently being used and feel it is also important to have the
opportunity for some flexibility in how the funds are used within the systems.

The additional $3 million one-time funds is a wonderful opportunity to strengthen the
services libraries provide and will give systems opportunities for additional resource
sharing that will benefit library users. Santiago Library System libraries include the
following as priorities:

o Early Literacy — Libraries are seeing parents and caregivers flock to early
learning storytimes and programs. Additional funding for new and innovative
programs will have a lasting benefit on the children and the State overall as we
set our young children up to succeed throughout their early education.

e A very strategic opportunity one of our libraries is considering is to serve the
underserved by a cooperative effort to generate counts of Library user data by
Census tract, in order to help identify underserved areas in our communities and
help target future services on those areas. We have an immediate opportunity to
use this information in the Early Development Index (EDI) project in cooperation

« with the Children and Families Commission of Orange County and the UCLA
Center for Healthier Children, Families and Communities. The EDI maps
percentages of at-risk and vulnerable children on several key markers of school
readiness. Library user counts by Census tract could be overlaid with EDI data to



identify correlations between library use and school readiness, and also help
identify areas that the libraries can target for early development programs and
services. This is one example of how the information can be used to benefit our

communities.

e Collaboration with schools to get library cards in the hands of all of our students
so they may benefit from online access to eResources as well as print resources.

e Adult education programs such as Career On-Line High School opportunities and
adult literacy programs to educate the adult learners in our communities.

« Digitization projects are also important to our libraries, but don't always make it to
the top of the list when competing with the literacy needs of our communities.

e Many of our libraries are taking advantage of the critically important CENIC
project and are benefiting with amazing broadband speeds while reducing
monthly costs. Funding for CENIC should remain a high priority. The potential
for greater Statewide collaboration through the expanded network capacity of
CalREN is a game changer for the Library community.

e We think allowing a portion of the funds to be used for administrative costs for
these projects is also important as is a requirement to report the outcomes for the

proposed use of funds.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide our input regarding the CLSA funding. We are
happy to provide additional information or respond to your questions.

Sincerely,

Mary McCasland

Library Director

Buena Park Library District
marymac@buenapark.lib.ca.us
714-826-4100 Ext. 121

cc: Greg Lucas, State Librarian

Stephanie Beverage

Director, Library Services
Huntington Beach Public Library
stephanie.beverage@surfcity-hb.org

714-960-8835



Exhibit D

Pacific Library Partnership

To: California Library Services Board

From: Jane Chisaki, Chair, Pacific Library Partnership (PLP)

Re: Recommendations to California Library Services Board re 2016/17 proposed CLSA funding
Date: March 24, 2016

We appreciate the opportunity to provide comments to the Board on the critical allocation of the
proposed on-going and one-time funds for the California Library Services Act (CLSA).

Ongoing Funds - $1.8 million

We support the staff recommendation that the on-going $1.8 million would be allocated to systems by
the current allocation formulas created by the Board. These additional funds would support the critical
essential functions of our systems — communications and delivery — and also support funds for the
administration of the systems. In recent years, these funds have also been used to support costs for
digital content (e-books and e-magazines) where the purchase of the resource was shared by three or
more member libraries. It would be helpful if the definition of eligible resources could be expanded to
include databases, streaming music and video and other e-resources.

One-time Funds - $3 million

We believe that the $3 million in one-time funding should be spent strategically in support of resource-
sharing which is the hallmark of CLSA and in support of programs that will have a significant statewide
impact. Both PLP and NLS have recently participated in strategic planning activities and have identified
service priorities for the systems that could be initiated or strengthened with these funds. Below are
some possible programs:

e Student Success Cards — In order to better leverage the investments that public libraries are
making in their digital and print resources, develop a state-wide initiative to ensure that every
student in a public K—12 classroom has convenient access to those resources. Several public
libraries have initiated this service using the student ID to generate a virtual library card that
provides online access for students to all public library e-resources. This program which also
could include print resources would be enhanced by a statewide platform providing
coordination through systems and county offices of education, educational materials for
teachers and parents and possibly extended delivery by connecting existing public library
delivery systems with public school delivery systems.

e Statewide E-resources - Although statewide aggregated e-resource purchasing has been
challenging in the past due primarily to costs, these state funds could be leverage with federal
and other funds to initiate a portfolio of e-resources that could be curated to be useful for
public library and school collections. This statewide purchase could free up some local
resources currently spent on these resources to be used for other material that was more
tailored to the needs of the individual communities. This service is available in most other

2471 Flores Street | San Mateo, CA 94403 | P:(650) 349-5538 | F:(650)349-5089 | Website: www.plpinfo.org



states. These resources could be supported with a combination of federal, state and local funds.
Here is a good example of students in Massachusetts who can access e-resources from their
G-mail accounts - http://mblc.state.ma.us/grants/licenses/blog/category/gale/.

Statewide Virtual Library Card — Although there is much local pride and identity in unique
community library cards, we have the opportunity to create some kind of virtual statewide
library card that could provide access to e-resources that were made available by any public
library in the state that participated in CLSA - the electronic version of the universal borrowing
program. The virtual library card could be issued along with a driver’s license or a statewide
identification card — we could identify a convenient and fairly universal process that most
residents use and determine how we could integrate the virtual card creation in to that process.
This card could greatly enhance the use of public library resources and lead to further utilization
of print resources as well.

Planning, Coordination and Evaluation of System-wide Services — This is an activity that is
specifically outlined in CLSA (Sec. 18746). Participating libraries want to identify their customer
base, target new audiences, and determine the effectiveness of programs and services both at a
local and system level. There are a number of services that provide frameworks for this
research and analysis (Analytics on Demand, Civic Technologies, Orange Boy). The
development of a statewide platform to provide access and technical assistance for audience,
program and service evaluation would be beneficial for all the state’s libraries in order to
provide more effective services. (PLP is using local funds to develop a system-level data analysis
tool with Analytics on Demand which can be shared with other systems as a pilot for this
analysis.)

There are many other important public library service priorities for the wide variety of audiences we
serve — early literacy, special needs, adult literacy, GED and high school success, senior services. These
services are critical yet the 2016/17 proposed funds have been allocated to the California Library
Services Act in support of its primary mission —enhanced resource-sharing of all types of materials

providing access to knowledge.

We also recommend the following:

Make one-time funds available for the use of the nine CLSA cooperative library systems.
Identify two - three key funding priorities.

Request systems to prepare proposals to implement programs in support of those priorities.
Establish a minimum level of funding that could be requested by each system.

Provide incentives for systems to cooperate on projects.

Require benchmarks/outcomes be established for all proposals.

Allow a portion of the $3 million to be used for administrative costs for these projects.

We would be glad to provide further information or respond to any questions. Please contact Susan
Hildreth, PLP CEO at 650-349-5538 or hildreth@plsinfo.org.

cc: Greg Lucas, State Librarian



Exhibit E

«’I,_‘—f\\ Nt N A | 2471 Flores Street, San Mateo, CA 94403
» g A'l | 650-349-5538 Fax: 650-349-5089

kg-_fl);s Librrary System

www.northnetlibs.org

To: California Library Services Board

From: Mel Lightbody, Chair, NorthNet Library System (NLS)

Re: Recommendations to California Library Services Board re 2016/17 proposed CLSA funding
Date: March 24, 2016

We appreciate the opportunity to provide comments to the Board on the critical allocation of the
proposed on-going and one-time funds for the California Library Services Act (CLSA).

Ongoing Funds - $1.8 million

We support the staff recommendation that the on-going $1.8 million would be allocated to systems by
the current allocation formulas created by the Board. These additional funds would support the critical
essential functions of our systems — communications and delivery — and also support funds for the
administration of the systems. In recent years, these funds have also been used to support costs for
digital content (e-books and e-magazines) where the purchase of the resource was shared by three or
more member libraries. We strongly recommend the following:

e Definition of e-resource sharing be expanded to include streaming content services (music and
film) and other types of digital resources, databases, etc.

e Zip Books, a customer-centric alternative to inter-library loan http://califa.org/wp-
content/uploads/2013/10/Zip-Books-for-Rural-Libraries-FAQ.pdf and other innovative services
to modernize and streamline the inter-library loan process be eligible for funding within the
communications and delivery program.

One-time Funds - $3 million

We believe that the $3 million in one-time funding should be spent strategically in support of resource-
sharing which is the hallmark of CLSA and in support of programs that will have a significant statewide
impact. Both PLP and NLS have recently participated in strategic planning activities and have identified
service priorities for the systems that could be initiated or strengthened with these funds. Below are
some possible programs:

e Statewide E-resources - Although statewide aggregated e-resource purchasing has been
challenging in the past due primarily to costs, these state funds could be leverage with federal
and other funds to initiate a portfolio of e-resources that could be curated to be useful for
public library and school collections. This statewide purchase could free up some local
resources currently spent on these resources to be used for other material that was more
tailored to the needs of the individual communities. This service is available in most other
states. These resources could be supported with a combination of federal, state and local funds.
Here is a good example of students in Massachusetts who can access e-resources from their
G-mail accounts - http://mblc.state.ma.us/grants/licenses/blog/category/gale/.




Support for Broadband Equipment - We appreciate the support of the Governor and the
Legislature for public library connectivity to California’s high speed research and education
network (CalREN) and funds for equipment to make that connection happen. A number of
NorthNet member libraries are taking advantage of that opportunity. Yet the costs for
equipment to connect to this network as well as local one-time costs to provide access to the
network and to support the initial up-front cost of circuits before federal and state discounts are
applied make this opportunity unattainable for libraries in rural and geographically isolated
communities where libraries may be the only access point to the information superhighway.
Buitding on your previous investment, we would encourage you to consider continuing that
support as a possible use of some or all of these one-time funds.

Statewide Virtual Library Card — Although there is much local pride and identity in unique
community library cards, we have the opportunity to create some kind of virtual statewide
library card that could provide access to e-resources that were made available by any public
library in the state that participated in CLSA - the electronic version of the universal borrowing
program. The virtual library card could be issued along with a drivet’s license or a statewide
identification card — we could identify a convenient and fairly universal process that most
residents use and determine how we could integrate the virtual card creation in to that process.
This card could greatly enhance the use of public library resources and lead to further utilization
of print resources as well.

Student Success Cards — In order to better leverage the investments that public libraries are
making in their digital and print resources, develop a state-wide initiative to ensure that every
student in a public K — 12 classroom has convenient access to those resources. Several public
libraries have initiated this service using the student ID to generate a virtual library card that
provides online access for students to all public library e-resources. This program which also
could include print resources would be enhanced by a statewide platform providing
coordination through systems and county offices of education, educational materials for
teachers and parents and possibly extended delivery by connecting existing public library
delivery systems with public school delivery systems.

Planning, Coordination and Evaluation of System-wide Services — This is an activity that is
specifically outlined in CLSA {Sec. 18746). Participating libraries want to identify their customer
base, target new audiences, and determine the effectiveness of programs and services both at a
local and system level. There are a number of services that provide frameworks for this
research and analysis (Analytics on Demand, Civic Technologies, Orange Boy). The development
of a statewide platform to provide access and technical assistance for audience, program and
service avaluation would be beneficial for all the state’s libraries in order to provide more
effective services. (PLP is using local funds to develop a system-level data analysis tool with
Analytics on Demand which can be shared with other systems as a pilot for this analysis.)

VAEEAN



There are many other important public library service priorities for the wide variety of audiences we
serve —early literacy, special needs, adult literacy, GED and high school success, senior services. These
services are critical yet the 2016/17 proposed funds have been allocated to the California Library
Services Act in support of its primary mission —enhanced resource-sharing of all types of materials
providing access to knowledge.

We also recommend the following:
e Make one-time funds available for the use of the nine CLSA cooperative library systems.

e |dentify two - three key funding priorities.

e Request systems to prepare proposals to implement programs in support of those priorities.
e Establish a minimum level of funding that could be requested by each system.

e Provide incentives for systems to cooperate on projects.

e Require benchmarks/outcomes be established for all proposals.

e Allow a portion of the $3 million to be used for administrative costs for these projects.

We would be glad to provide further information or respond to any questions. Please contact Mel
Lightbody, NLS Chair, at 530-538-7240, mlightbody@buttecounty.net or Susan Hildreth, NLS
Administrator, at 650-349-5538 or hildreth@plsinfo.org.

cc: Greg Lucas, State Librarian



1A Lig
oRN R,
® A

"ot T ™ Exhibit F

DATE: March 25, 2016

TO: California Library Services Board

FROM: Glenda Williams, Chair, Southern California Library Cooperative (SCLC)
SUBJECT: Recommendations to California Library Services Board

2016/17 Proposed CLSA Funding

The Southern California Library Cooperative (SCLC) Administrative Council appreciates the opportunity
to provide comments to the Board regarding the proposed ongoing and the one-time California Library
Services Act funding for FY 2016/17.

Overview

A goal of the nine library cooperatives in the State of California has been to work together to provide
improved communication and access to the member libraries and their residents. The System
Coordinators recently met and discussed ways to maximize potential funding on a statewide level to
facilitate meeting this goal. As a result of a brainstorming session in January of this year, the system
coordinators worked together, with Maureen Theobald (Black Gold) taking the lead, to create a
statewide information sharing platform. Member libraries contribute information to the development of a
clearinghouse of policies and procedures, fines and fee structures, job descriptions and more. This is
one example of a collaborative project driven by the input of the member libraries to utilize CLSA funds
which are critical to the operation of resource sharing between CLSA libraries.

Ongoing Funds- $1.8 million

SCLC supports the staff recommendation that the ongoing $1.8 million would be allocated to the
systems using the current allocation formula created by the Board. SCLC directors participated in a
workshop to strategically plan how CLSA funds would be used and determine the most advantageous
projects to be shared by three or more member libraries. These funds are critical to the Communication
and Delivery of our system, as well as the administration of the system.

One-time Funds- $3 million

The consensus for projects utilizing the one-time funds toward statewide resource sharing for member
libraries will be a considerable benefit to their respective residents. SCLC Directors participated in a
workshop to develop future initiatives and also suggested using funds to engage innovators from the
university lab and/or private sectors. Involving pioneers and developers from outside the library
industry will help us drive past simply repurposing our past practices, leading to more transformative,
breakthrough innovations. In addition to creating new-model business plans for programs such as the
following, investing now to integrate “outside” industry visionary thought into the library planning
process could lay the groundwork for future transformation:

» Mental Health- Libraries are facing an increasing challenge with homelessness and patrons
suffering from mental health related issues. Azusa has a successful model that addresses these
issues and could be replicated to create neighborhood community resource specialists to assist
staff in addressing issues related to the homeless and mentally challenged patrons by
partnering with local agencies currently offering services. Ideas could include portable showers,
portable laundry services, legal aid and access to health care. The specialist can be hired to
work with three or more libraries. This supports one of the State Librarian’s initiatives.

» Statewide Resource sharing- Resource sharing is a cost effective way for the cooperatives to
maximize services. Maker spaces have become a popular mechanism to target specific




interests. It is suggested to use the one-time funds to create roving maker space vans and/or
maker space boxes that can be shared within the cooperative. In addition, design a digitization
van to support the digitization project currently being developed by the State Library.

e Statewide E-Resources- Libraries provide core e-resources at the local level which can be very
costly and duplicative. The State Library can be the backbone for California libraries by
developing a statewide e-resource sharing platform for e-books, e-magazines and California
specific newspapers. This would free up local funding and enable libraries to focus more effort
on community needs. With the decline of school libraries, students could also benefit by having
access to these resources.

e Statewide Library Card- It is the goal of libraries to provide material that meets their community
needs. This can be a costly undertaking and difficult based on limited space. Having the ability
to share materials throughout the state enhances the patron's experience and their ability to
access a wider range of materials. One service some libraries are using is LINK+, a resource-
sharing network that provides direct requesting of books and media from over 70 libraries of all
types in California and Nevada. Partnering with LINK+ to use a statewide library card would be
a financial benefit to libraries and their users.

e Statewide Databases- Similar to the statewide e-resources, a statewide database platform
hosted by the State Library would benefit all libraries in California. There are a variety of
databases such as EBSCO which would benefit educational needs, workforce investment and
more. Analytics on Demand is a database to benefit libraries and their ability to recognize the
demographics in their community. The ability to access databases remotely increases the
sphere of the library.

e Citizenship- Immigration services are provided by some libraries. Utilizing the experience and
expertise of current models would benefit libraries throughout California. One example is a
program called Inspired Citizenship. Patrons are partnered with a coach to prepare for the
citizenship test, which currently has a 100% success rate for the patron. USCIS is also a good
partnership for this program because they have resources designed for libraries. Funding would
provide much needed resources to promote and present the program. This initiative not only
benefits the individual, but the community where they live and work.

The Southern California Library Cooperative would be glad to provide you with additional information or
respond to any questions. Please contact Diane Satchwell at 626-283-5949 or
dsatchwell@socallibraries.org.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

cc: Greg Lucas, State Librarian



Exhibit G

49-99 Cooperative Library System

DATE: March 25, 2016

TO: California Library Services Board _

FROM: Laura Einstadter, Chair, 49-99 Cooperative Library System
RECOMMENDATIONS: California Library Services Board 16/17 Proposed CLSA Funding

The 49-99 Cooperative Library System’s Administrative Council appreciates the opportunity to
provide comments to the Board regarding the proposed ongoing and the one-time California
Library Services Act funding for FY 2016/17.

Ongoing Funds- $1.8 million

49-99 supports the staff recommendation that the ongoing $1.8 million would be allocated to the
systems using the current allocation formula created by the Board. 45-99 directors participated in
a workshop to strategically plan how CLSA funds would be used and determine the most
advantageous projects to be shared by three or more member libraries. These funds are critical to
the Communication and Delivery of our system, as well as the administration of the system.

Recently 49-99 used their CLSA funds to contract with LINK+ for their services. LINK+ is a resource-
sharing network that provides direct requesting of books and media from over 70 libraries of all
types in California and Nevada. Services will begin in late May. CLSA funds made this possible to
improve delivery of materials to the member libraries.

One-time Funds- $3 million

The consensus for projects utilizing the one-time funds toward statewide resource sharing for
member libraries will be a considerable benefit to their respective residents. 49-99 Directors
participated in a workshop to develop future initiatives and suggest the following programs:

e LINK+: LINK+ is a resource-sharing network that provides direct requesting of books and
media from over 70 libraries of all types in California and Nevada, 49-99 added this service
this fiscal year. 49-99 no longer needs to process time-consuming InterLibraryLoan
requests, reducing staff time and costs. It also provides a wide variety of material
otherwise not available in their libraries. 49-99 libraries contribute unique material specific
to their historically rich area. LINK+ would benefit all libraries in California and create a
universal library card for California residents.

e Statewide E-resources: 49-99 is challenged with providing e-books and e-magazines with
their limited budgets. Creating a statewide platform of e-resources would provide a
valuable resource to their communities. This would free up local funding and enable
libraries to focus more effort on community needs. With the decline of school libraries,
students could also benefit by having access to these resources.

e Statewide Databases: Similar to the statewide e-resources, a statewide database platform
hosted by the State Library would benefit all libraries in California. To better serve the
residents, libraries need data for decision-making purposes. Analytics on Demand is a




database to benefit libraries and their ability to recognize the demographics in their
community. Another noteworthy database is EBSCO which benefits schools, workforce
investment and more. The ability to access databases remotely increases the sphere of the
library.

e Digi-bus: Technology changes rapidly. Libraries want and need to take the lead and offer
the newest most advanced technology devices. The rural libraries struggle to keep up with
the changes and then try to figure out the best method to offer these to their patrons. A
Digi-bus would provide current technology devices such as hotspots and 3-D printers. It
would travel around the cooperative stopping at libraries, flea markets, special events, etc.
It would also work as a promotional tool showing off the libraries, while educating the
public.

e Shared Knowledge Platform: Library staff constantly share and request policies and
procedures through global email requests. Since all cooperatives wanted this program, the
System Coordinators worked together, with Maureen Theobald (Black Gold) taking the
lead, to create a statewide information sharing platform. Member libraries contribute
information to the development of a clearinghouse of policies and procedures, fines and
fee structures, job descriptions and more. This is one example of a collaborative project
driven by the input of the member libraries to utilize CLSA funds which are critical to the
operation of resource sharing between CLSA libraries.

49-99 would be glad to provide you with additional information or respond to any questions.
Please contact Diane Satchwell at 626-283-5949 or dsatchwell@socallibraries.org.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

cc: Greg Lucas, State Librarian



Exhibit H

391 Front Street, Suite F
Grover Beach, CA 93433
805 543 6082

K )( }Pi \\l !\.’/ I “ lJ‘f\l‘ Y “':YL I 'j"l"-""L!",-“'j org

To: California Library Services Board
From: Ned Branch, Chair, Black Gold Cooperative Library System
Subject: Proposed CLSA funding recommendations

Date: March 25, 2016

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments on the proposed additional California Library Services Act
(CLSA) funds for FY 2016-17. This is an excellent opportunity to apply the funds in both existing and new ways
to leverage the abilities and strengths of the systems.

Ongoing funds:

Staff has recommended the ongoing $1.8 million be allocated to systems by the current allocation formula. We
support that recommendation since delivery and communications are critical to our system’s function. The
additional funds would allow us to supplement our very active digital download programs with new titles. Use
of those products is nearly doubling each year and it we are unable to keep up with the demand with our
current budgeted funds.

One-time funds

We recommend the one-time funds of $3 million be used to again further the strength of the CLSA system’s
resource sharing capabilities. We hope that the funds are made available for the nine CSLSA cooperative library
systems and a minimum of level of funds should be available to each system. Several initiatives could be
identified and made available, and each system could select and apply for those which would best serve their
members. Initiatives which the Black Geold Cooperative would find most useful would be:

Statewide E-resources. Public libraries should take charge of information literacy. Schools are ill
equipped to handle these efforts and every school district seems to have different levels and standards for
information literacy. The public library is the solution; we just need support for these collaborative efforts. One
of our libraries identified computer technology and test books as tools that are very much needed.

Evaluation of Services. It has been very difficult to determine how our services are being utilized. Non-
users of library services are particularly hard to identify. Products and services are now available to get at this
information, and Analytics on Demand was recently used by one of our members to help gauge the need for a
new branch. They found the information they gathered was extremely useful and would support use for all of
our members. This would also allow us to look at use of digital resources at the system level in order to derive
better information on how those services are being used and what could be improved.

Moveable “Library of Things” — Not every library has the capability of housing or funding a full “Library
of Things.” This proposal would have the system members create sets of loanable items that could move
around the system via delivery for patrons to use. Libraries could also use them for programming. They would
be centered on a theme; suggested themes for this could be Music (musical instruments, amplifiers,



metronomes, sheet music or music books), Science (microscopes, chemistry sets, telescopes, electronic kits,
books of lab experiments.)

Thank you again for the opportunity to make suggestions on how the funding could be spent. We would be
happy to provide more information if needed. Please contact Maureen Theobald, BG Executive Director, at
mtheobald@blackgold.org or (805) 543-1093.

Cc: Greg Lucas, Black Gold Administrative Council



COOPERBTHE
LIBRARY RFHTEM

R #'.’?‘ Exhibit I

Serra Cooperative Library System

DATE: March 25, 2016

TO: California Library Services Board

FROM: Sherri Cosby, Chair, Serra Cooperative Library System
SUBJECT: Recommendations to California Library Services Board

2016/17 Proposed CLSA Funding

Serra Administrative Council appreciates the opportunity to provide comments to the Board
regarding the proposed ongoing and the one-time California Library Services Act funding for FY
2016/17.

Ongoing Funds- $1.8 million

Serra supports the staff recommendation that the ongoing $1.8 million would be allocated to the
systems using the current allocation formula created by the Board. Serra directors participated in
a workshop to strategically plan how CLSA funds would be used and determine the most
advantageous projects to be shared by three or more member libraries. Serra has taken
advantage of using the CLSA funds for e-books and e-magazines. These funds are critical to the
Communication and Delivery of our system, as well as the administration of the system.

One-time Funds- $3 million

The consensus for projects utilizing the one-time funds toward statewide resource sharing for
member libraries will be a considerable benefit to their respective residents. Serra Directors
participated in a workshop to develop future initiatives and suggest the following programs:

LINK+: LINK+ is a resource-sharing network that provides direct requesting of books and
media from over 70 libraries of all types in California and Nevada. Serra has wanted to
add this service. It equalizes their collections for the smaller libraries and it would add
value to the larger systems as well. LINK+ would benefit all libraries in California and has
the potential for a universal library card for California residents.

Statewide Resource Sharing: Resource sharing is a cost effective way for the
cooperatives to maximize services. Maker spaces have become a popular mechanism to
target specific interests. It is suggested to use the one-time funds to create roving maker
space vans and/or maker space boxes that can be shared within the cooperative. Other
ideas included play and learn islands to share due to the high cost of the product and
provide the opportunity to design a digitization van to support the digitization project
currently being developed by the State Library.

Statewide E-Resources: Serra currently uses QverDrive and Zinio for e-books and e-
magazines. The libraries provide core e-resources at the local level using the CLSA funds,
but they are still very costly. The State Library can be the backbone for California libraries
by developing a statewide e-resource sharing platform for e-books, e-magazines and
California specific newspapers which would increase the number of titles and copies
currently available. This would free up local funding and enable libraries to focus more




effort on community needs for the CLSA funds. With the decline of school libraries,
students could also benefit by having access to these resources.

 Digi-bus: Technology changes rapidly. Libraries want and need to take the lead and offer
the newest most advanced technology devices. The libraries struggle to keep up with the
changes and then try to figure out the best method to offer these to their patrons. A Digi-
bus would provide current technology devices such as hotspots and 3-D printers. It would
travel around the cooperative stopping at libraries, flea markets, special events, etc. It
would also work as a promotional tool showing off the libraries, while educating the public.

Serra would be glad to provide you with additional information or respond to any questions.
Please contact Diane Satchwell at 626-283-5949 or dsatchwell@socallibraries.org.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

cc: Greg Lucas, State Librarian

[Type text]



Exhibit J

INLAND
LIBRARY
SYSTEM

Date: March 28, 2016
To: California Library Services Board

From: Tonya Kennon, Chair, Inland Library System (ILS)
Michelle Perera, Vice Chair, Inland Library System (ILS)

Re: Recommendations to California Library Services Board for proposed CLSA funding

The Inland Library System extends gratitude to the California Library Services Board for the
opportunity to provide comments on the proposed California Library Services Act (CLSA) funds
for FY 2016/17. We are thankful for the CLSA funding included in the Governor’s proposed
budget and view it as an opportunity to bolster systems, strengthen existing services and
support essential new services. ‘

We support the recommendation for $1.8 million in ongoing funds to be allocated to systems
using the current allocation formula. Qur support of this recommendation is driven by the fact
that communication and delivery are fundamental to system services and support for
administration of the systems is vital. The funds also provide an opportunity to supplement e-
books, e-magazines and other such popular shared digital services to assist with meeting
demand. To meet the needs of the diverse systems served, we support the opportunity to
enhance flexibility with regard to use of the funds within the systems.

We recommend the $3 million in one-time funds be used to strengthen resource sharing for the
benefit of all communities. We suggest funds be used to support multiple statewide initiatives
that speak to the needs of the diverse communities served by the systems. The following
initiatives would most benefit the Inland Library System:

A Card for Every Student — State support of an initiative to provide a library card for all K-12
students for the benefit of stronger educational support through increased access to resources.

Statewide e-Resources — While our systems are diverse, there are many e-resources that are
duplicated across systems without the advantage of economies of scale. Public libraries are the
information hub for all and should provide a base level of e-Resources in support of information
literacy and the increasing need for remote access to information.

Digitization — Public library archives and local history collections hold some of the most
important about and for our communities. It is imperative that the information is not lost and
access to the information is enhanced. Many libraries do not have the funds to digitize their




collections. A statewide initiative in support of robust regional digitization centers within public
libraries is needed to advance this work.

System Administration — Strong systems are key to advancing the work of public libraries and
supporting statewide initiatives, as well as administering and managing reporting of CLSA
funded projects.

Mobile STEM Labs — Public libraries should be a foremost promoter of STEM education. Funding
to purchase items to loan and for programming will assist in this endeavor and will keep
libraries at the table when discussions about STEM education are taking place in our
communities.

We thank you for the opportunity to provide comments on how the CLSA funding should be
allocated. We are happy to further discuss the information herein or answer any questions you
may have.

Sincerely,

Tonya Kennon Michelle Perera

Library Director Library Director

Riverside Public Library Rancho Cucamonga Library Services
tkennon@riversideca.gov michelle.perera@cityofrc.us
951-826-5713 909-477-2720 x5055

Cc: Greg Lucas, State Librarian
Inland Library System Administrative Council



Document 5

INFORMATION

AGENDA ITEM: CLSA System Annual Report, FY 2014/15

GENERAL OVERALL PROGRAM UPDATES:

CLSA funds continue to support the Communications and Delivery (C&D) program
at the cooperative system level. In FY 2014/15, C&D funds supported all or a portion
of each System’s physical delivery of materials. Some Systems provided
communications activity through virtual attendance at various meetings and use of
their website and listservs for facilitating communications to member libraries.
Exhibit A provides a summary of activities and how communities benefited through
state funding. Exhibit B displays a summary of the actual workload statistics for
2014/15. Exhibits C and D provide a brief history to show how statistics for
communications and physical delivery have fared over time.

Expenditures for 2014/15: Exhibits E and F display CLSA and local funds expended
in support of System Administration and C&D. See Exhibit G for a summary of local
member contributions.

RELATED ISSUES TO COME BEFORE THE BOARD IN THE FUTURE:
Consideration of 2016/17 System Plans of Service.

Staff Liaison: Monica Rivas



‘uoloe)sies

Anunuwiwos Jo jaag| Y31y e Suluieluiewl pue s|eUalew JO U WUSAoLY
3y} Suinuluod ssLelql] :9Ylo Aq paumo s[epalew jsenbal o1

3|ge dJaMm SuCJlRd "WaISAs A1aal@p 3yl YSnoayl ealke 921AI9S WIISAS
3yl inoySnoayl sjelislew pspasu apiaosd ol padisy spunj vs1d

"sauelql

JaquIaW WOy S[BIIBBW 10 All|IgR|[BAR 33 UO WUapuadap
s1 uopendod WalsAs oYl "SILEIGI] JSLUISW 0] 323M B 321M3
15E3] 18 S|ela1eLW 0 AJaal|ap apiaoad 03 st [eo8 Alewid syl

WalsAg
Areagin
anpiesadoo)
66-6¥

‘polepasdde Ajlpwialixs sem

Aleaqr] 51215 aY1 wodl spuny jeuoiippe syl Suiaey os quem suodled
ano sajdoo pue sajyl aus e SutAjddns Aynoyip aaey am pue Jeai
Yoea JUNOoWE |BIapISU0D B AQ SBSEIIIUI UOIIR|NDIID BALJISAQ DY L

‘¥I/€10C

UL N0 PRXIBYD L2 68T S WOL) SSBBIDU] %87 B ‘ST/FTOT Ul
SINOXI3YD BALIQIBAQ OFS'SSE PeY 2A11RI3d00) PlOD) Yor|d 9Y1 ‘Spuny
pappe syl Jo asnedaq Ajued ang "uo1IRe||0d sAlQIaAQ pPaleYys Y] 1oy
S9|11 aseyaind o1 pasn sem Buipuny 91e3S Ul pS/ TS [BUOILPPR By

:Juipuny alels awi-auQ JO asn

"sayouelq |eind pue |jews A1aA Jno 1e suouied ioy

Ingasn Ajjepadsa pue Adeaqi| suo Aue jo suoned 0] 3|gejieAR SWL JO
Jaquunu ay) seseasoul AjFeas siy | "Aep 1XaU 9Yi SB UCOS SE SOWIIRUIOS
‘Appinb Alaa WYL 919031 pue Aeme S3JILU PIIPUNY [BISABS SALIEA]]|
WoJ4 sway 1sanbal 01 2jqe aJe suosed.asnedaq paiyauaq ARUNWIWOD
2y (ST} weisAs Ateiqri pates8aiu] ue 2Jeys sisquaw pjog

Re|g "1oenuod AlsAlRp syl 1902 Ajjended 01 pasn sism spuny ys1D

‘3|qissod se Apjoinb se
suouied 01 sjeslewW Lo AJsAlSp apinold o1 st |eo8 Azewinrd 3yl

Wia1sAg
Aelqr
aAltesadoo]
pioo ¥2e|d

é1yauag Ajunwiwio) ays pIp MOH — 19|\ S|BOD) a1an

VSTD Y8nodyl spaap ayi Suizasp 1oy sjeon

WwIa1sAg

weidoad AaaiaQ pue suojiedunLtwo?)
ST/PTOT Ad — 1oday [enuuy weldold wWaisig
PY $921AIIS Adeaqr] eluiogljed

vV Uqiyx3




e

AT

.

Aimols sanunod aasy; $,S11 Ul UOl1en3s 5|Wou023 sy ysnoyapy
'532UN0S34-D 0 $59208 9ABY S3IIUNOD QUIpJRUIDg UBS pue ‘apisianiy
‘0Au] 10 suspISal [je 1eL] 3unsus 0] pasn sem Suipuny swil-suo sy

:3urpuny a3e3s Wil ~-3uQ Jo Isn

'SISeq Je[nSaL & U0 J9Y10 Yors yum AAIDaYD Yiom
HEIS pue sispes| asoym ssiiesql) Suiaey Aq peayeusg Anunwwos ay
"padwens. Ajjusdas pue patepdn Allenuinuod sem aysgam pueju| sy

3uoydaj3y 1o dIOA BlA puspie 01 siaquisw 3uijgeus ‘Supaajnolon J0
_ uonduasqgns e ym 19w usaq sey ‘yels Ateiq)| Jsquisw Jo sFueaW
m 134310 |[B pue |1pUNO) "ulWpY 1B Souepusyie jenpia Jupeylne;
“ J0 [eod ayy ‘(1w “bs 000°SE 22A0) pueuj 40 558Uls5eA BY1 JO 9snedag
| .
Iauuew Alpwin e ur saleaq) BurtoqySisu
mEo._...F S|elI91eW BAI9I9L pUe ‘SalIRIqL JRGUISW pueju| jje u,o_‘:o_pum:ou
: 9Y3 03 s5830e JuIney AQ palyBUR] SARIUNWIWOD YL "SaIAIBS
111 JO ®SNeJBq pauysuaq seale paie|os) AjeoyydesSoas pue jeuns
ulsuoned "22IAIBS |B1S0d SN BY) pue ‘SdM "©oIAISS JaLINOD SEYNET
| wia1sAs Azeaqry Aaunon SpIsIBARY aul SuUisSn swil 8yl Jo 9456 Joy
sAep Supiiom QT uiypm PaIaAI[Sp 2J9M SWBYL "SIaqWaw Ateaqiy| o1gnd
| 6T ||B 03 SjeL1EW Jo Asanep |eaisAyd ayy 10} papirold spuny yso

‘Sasquisw
o3 Aquond wi ySiy sujewad sjelsiew jeatsAyd jo Ausaipeg

wialsAg
Adeaqr
pueju]

JUSWISIAUL U0 UIN18d 1531ea48 By

Pue Aianljsp Jog 831A195 Jo [opowt 4o Is8q 9U3 sulwWJIBLap 03 ssad0ud
Ul S13USWISsasse uy 's1503 Aleaj|ap ay3 Jo sauejeq oyl Aed 0y pasn
SI9M SpUny SWN-9U0 3Y1 JO Yanw ‘AISAYSP 10 1502 ysiy ay1 o1 ang

:Buipuny 33815 Swi1-suQ JO asp

panuiRuo)
UI535AS
Aseiqn
aAleISdoon
66-6t




"JaUUBRLW A[aWI] B Ul 1502 9]qEPIOYE UR 3B PJBAI[Rp a1om paisanbal
SWis1l 9snedsq Pallaudq ALUNWWOD YL U003 SALIPIDAQD

aY1 404 BulieyS 93IN0$34 SO} S1SCD UOIIEDIUNWILLIOD BY) 1950 Ajei1ned
0] P3SN OS|E 943/M SPUNY PI1BI0||B-YST]D "S1S03 J13Y] [[& 2104 pasinquuial
9J9M PUB Sd[] J0/pue 321AI8S [IELU S @Y pasn ‘Uil 93e)S YHON
9Y1 Ul AjLiewlid ‘S10puRA AJ9AIBP 19B11U0D AQ PIAISS J0U 3J9M 1BYL
S3lJelql] "3[eds Jagie| yon e uo ueo| Asesqiuaiul y8noayl S924nosal
J0 2ulieys sy1 paSeunosua pue parcidwi Ajpest8 stuawaaiSe sgq)
UBIBLIP |BIDARS YIm saile.aql) Jo uotiedadood syl ssodind jeys Joy
Sulpun} yS1) PI3EIO||B 349M pUE SBLJBIq]] 9SO} SUOLUE S|BLIBIRL JO
AJDAI|P 104 10B1IUOD B PBISISIUILUPE AJUNOD ULIBIA UL SDLIRIQY ‘WB1SAS
oY1 Aq paJsisiuiwpe s10e13U00 341 03 uoippe ul “Sutuued pue
1UBWSSISSE [Ny.1eD YZNO04) Pa1081I0D 349m ASU] SIOPUIA pUE Jels

Aq pauRusp] s19M SBNSS] USYAA "SILIBIGI| JSQLUSW D] JO JOGINU & 0}
SDUBAIBP PIpIACd 18U SIOPUDA 1USISHIP OM] UM SIDOEIIUOD YSnody}
paysidwodde sem s|eLRIRW 4O AlSAIRQ “SSUEBIQI| JOqUDW [ENpPIAIPUI
40 SpPI/U 3Y3 183W 159 JBYI SUOJIDBULI paplaodd spuny ys1d

"$19s5N
pu? 1o Jjauaq 2yl J0) S2IIN0SII 3UBYS 0} WSY] 3|qeus pue

Salielqi| JaQLUAW |ENPIAIPUL 1O SPBSU B8Y1 193W 1534 01 Palojiel

suolzpauuod 3uioddns Ag AJsAlj@p puUE UOITRDIUNILIOD
10} S|EOS 1NO 193W 01 3|qe 2Je aaA "Ajdold 1saySiy
3yl se sauelql] Jaquiaw Ag paynuspl ussq sey Aiaaljag

WI1SAS
Ateaqgrt
1ENYLION

pueqpeouq
ysnouya o|gejieAe sjeualew uj puewsp Suimols syl 193w 0) psddinba

1913q SJoM S3IRIqI] JoqUISW PUB SI2IN0SB-3 pasueyus Ajjeruesqns
03 s$8008 pey aJidw3 pue|u| SY3 JO SIUBPISDY "SISQUDW LJBIS OE 10}
sdoysuom 33441 pjay pue 1npoud pu3 sy uo Sujuresy papincad eyije)
"BIUIZ YSN01Y] $3JU1 OET JON0 4O UOIDB|}02 BuIzeSew-a ue pue nju3
Y3noJyl pasagjo $8j11 000‘0T 40 UOII3}[0D yoog-2 9y peseyaind g7j

"||e 1e Sujpunj 824n0sad
-2 [€J0] OU peY SI3GLUSW M3} Y "PUBLISP JAWIOISNI 139W 01 YNIUHP
3 punoj saleJqlf 3sow pue 148 a1am s388png Uo1I9)j02 ‘parcidul

panujuc)
wa1shg
Aleign
pugu]




"3JBMLLOS SE [|9M SB ‘SSUIHMS pUB SI9INoJ Se yons uswdinbs
paphjoul siy] "[elauss ul UOI1RJIUNWWOD J0) pue Ajjeoypads
‘pueqgpeouq Jo 1oddns U} a1emuos pue ssempley jo aseyasnd ayl aol
UOI1BJ0||E JIDY] 951 AJRI(] 2B 18U1 PIPUSWIWOIDL JEIS ‘puegpedq
YA UOIDRLIP pue snisduwl] SpImalels sUL USAID "UOIIeI0e
uonendod %09 e pue o34 uonedpnled diysisquisuw Jidyl U0 paseq
BINWI0Y BSBQ %0p © Bulsn ‘SDLIBIq]] 941 01 PIINGLISIP 818m spung sy

:Buipuny s1E15 BWI-9UQ JO 35

‘pauInlad pue paJiajsuedy |elalew 4o Arelqry aljgng asor

ues pue Aueaqri Aluno? eiep) elues usamiag Juswasuedie |epads

€ 0s|e sem 349y "Acd]iD pue 0312|A] UBS Ul Y39m B 82u0 sutod yonol
7 SeY 321AI3S AISAI[Rp Sy "921AI9S JO sAep G Joy ea1xd SutAed saueaq)
_N UHM SARD € 10 Z 921495 AIDAI|DP 3Nl & BABY UCIEa) AI31UOK
U3 Ul ssllelql] pue Hjeam Jad sAep.z uea Jisyl Suisn Alsallep

101 §1d Y1IM 19BI1U0D B 3ARY ARG Y1NOS S Ul SSLIRIG| ‘9DIAIIS J1N0D
ARp € 10 7 9ARY 0DSIIUEI] UES pue Aeg 1583 93 Ul SBLIRIC)| 'SUBA
AJBAIBp € SUMO pue sI2ALIP £ sAojdws WaIsAS Aseaqr] ejnsulusg 3yl
pue ‘Aluno? oa1elAl UES Ul AJanl[ap yaom B ABp G B SBY [9pOl AJBAIIPP
1u2.1n2 3y "Supleys 324n0sas Joddns 01 Ateaq 01 Aeiq] wWouy
S|ELI21BW BAOW O] SSLEIGL] d1d Ul pasn Ajuewd sem Suipun} ¥s1)

"AsAlRp

J0J Apisqns ySTD B SUIAISD34 BBJR 92IAL9S UIED UM UoIZad 33
UIYHM Seale S22IAJDS Bleledds Anoj aJe a4syl dfqissod siy3
sjew 1eyt Jusuoduiod (31140 Y1 St AISAIISP pue SUoI1D3)| 0D
[ENPIAIpUI 1242 JO yldap pue ylpeaiq syl aoueyua ol Suneys
924n0saJ uo puadap uoidal syl 1noy3nodyl salielgr sauelql|
JIquaw 1no Jo Alonad 1541} 941 2 01 SShunuod AlsAlaqg

(d7d)
diysisuled
Aseaqry
Jijised

"sai1olid pue spuswalinbal

a3 Yiim pausije aq [jim sesuadxa Auy LT/9T0T Ad 40 9T/SI0T A4 Ul
paAo|dep aq Aew pue 9T/STOT Ad Ul PRUILLIDIDP o4 [|IM Spuny 3say3
J0 9sn 8yl 4o} suejd HyadS “palilUdPI FUlag AjIUSIIND BJB NIY|ED Ul
areddiped o] soueiql] SN J0) SJudWS4INbas pue spasu oY "dARERIUI
puegpeolq apima1els 2y ul uonedoied saueiqgl] SN Hoddns

01 9AJ9s3J uswidinbs ue uy peaejd sem Bulpuny 9181 DWI1-2UO Y]

:8ujpuny 91€1 WL -SUQ JO IS

panunRuo)
WIS1SAS
Areaqr
1I9NYHON




‘S8YIURIq PIlB|OS] PUB [Bind 20w
ano jo Auew 031 Ajlaiosuuod Suipiaoad ul Ayijiqixad paaosduw yim
STATS papiacid spunj swil-auo ay| 'ssas04d Burunsuod awyy pue

AASUBdXa Ue sem SIYL “STdIN 01 ASojouyasl Aejal swed) WOl JJoMmIau
N0 SUIIBAUOD JO Ssa204d 3UY Ul SeM STA[S "JedA [e2sly ay3 duting

*$1500 SUOIIB3IUNWWOI3| 3]

juswsne djay o1 spuny awil suo ayy Ajdde 03 paise|e [12uno?)
SAIBIISIUILIPY 3| *ANoedEd HIOMIBU PUB YIpIMmpUEd pepuedxa

JO paau [B11HI U SURWBL STATS "AJIDAIDQ PUB SUCIIRIILURWIWOY
10} ZF9°ESS BuiaRa] ‘UORIISIUIUPY WRISAS J0J pajeusisap

J9M TTPETS ‘Spuny [euoiuppe asoyl 4O "€05°£96S sem Suipuny
awn-suo 9U3 JO aJeyYS (SIAIS) 5,WB1SAS Adeaqr] As|lep uinbeor ues ay].

:3uipuny a1els AWl -3UQ JO IS

spuayasm Aeploy

UIEHI32 punoJe sAe[3p [BLUIUIL YUM “ISUUBW A[SWI1 B Ul PBAOLU DJ3M
sjer1a1eW 8y (swalsAs Adaaljep JUslalIp OMI) ousal4 Jo AJuno)

9yl pue AJeiqiT AJUNOD OUSBI14 YT YLIM SDIALSS 10BIIUOD B ysnoayz
SapeIql s1v3enbpeay ugamlaq sjelsleW SA0W 03 padjay spuny ys1o

‘'STH 941 pue 191U Blep 9Ul 031

SUOIeJ0] £TT 93 S128UUOD 1B }IOMISU SUOIIEDIUNWIWOIB|D]
Y] PUB S2IAITS [[BLUS 3pIM-WIB1ISAS U3 S|Ie1uUs

OS|e suoiedIunWWo) “sjeualew Aleldql| jo Atonljep [eaisAyd
3sn[ UeYL 210W SIPN[IUT AISANRP PUE SUOIIEDIUNLUWOYD

(STArS)
WI1SAS
Aleaqr
Aajep
uinbeor ueg

'SUOdo T pue AJSAISP JIYI0 SB ||9M SB ‘DIIALSS
panjea siy1 1oddns 01 pasn osje aiam spuny ‘ueo| Areagiuagul
papuedxs 404 +padur] ul ajeddied Salielql swos jeyl Suiziudosay

'$91S

le 104 99T 01 opeJddn uonejuswaldw puegpeoiq a1 32UIS paJinaido
123 a3esn Ul 9sE310U] %001 243 9151} W 03 papasu Ajuagin

S49M 1B} SI9IN0J pue SaYdUMs aseyaind o1 pjay pue paledaisse
3Jam spunj ay1 (S1d) Axuno3 os1epy ues Ul SaleIgl BY1 104

panuiiua)
{d1d)
diusisunied
Aeaqr]
21410ed




N ,

‘3uo JeaA ul azedpied o1 s|qe

AJeuqyy Ajuo ms.u SEAM OPIPUODST 1N ‘PasSNasIp sem puegpeoag "Aljeal
B 5143 2xelu 0} 3ullse] Op 01 3|(. U3 SeY RLIaS ‘Spuni |euollippe
UT Yum 11 ‘$58Us||BYD SLIOS BSNED 01 SBNUIIU0D SAHCISAD
"S3lRIl] [BANd SYT 1B |}9M SURJOM S| OIUIZ 'SILIBIQ]] [[B 01 8ALIQIBAQD
pue oluiz ppe o1 Alunpoddo ue pepiacad Fuipuny SWH-oU0 YL

:3ulpuny} 21e1S W -2UQO JO 3sN

‘SalipAgl Jaquiaw oy 01 woddns aplactd pue uoledUNWIWLOD
IIUBYUS 01 51001 0 AIBIIBA B UM SSLIBIGL| J3quaw apiaoad

flIM SIUL "STOZ ‘6 1940150 Sl 91ep ,BAl| 03, 2yl PUR SINUILO0I SUSHDM
BU1 UO JIOM "Sjeldslew palsanbal o ALSAISP 91 SEM SB1IUNWIWIOD
9y} 01 1jauaqg ay] "wasAs Alsaljop 5,0891Q ues Jo Aluno) ayl ysnoayz
[Bpow 2x0ds/gny & pue JOPUdA IDBIIU0D B Sulsn Jouuew Ajpwi e

Ul W31SAS SY1 1N0YSN0IY] S|RUS1BW JSAISP 01 PAsA 219M SpPUny yS1)

"sIpguIBW WalsAg syl Joy Ajaoud
B Sl S9LIBIQ]] JOQUIS LU UDaMmla( S{elS1BW 1O AUDAIBD [RIISAUY

WaISAS
Aleiqn
aaiesadoo)
BIIBg

‘uone|ndod

UO paseq Bjnuwiio} B 01 3UipJoddL PIInNquISIp 319m 1Byl SpuUn} swil
-3U0 WOl S3|UI H00Y- BAIXS 3seydind o1 ajge sem Aleiq) Joquiaw
yae3 ~SuIp|ing 224N0sa1-9 JAI1BI0QE||0D 404 Suipuny 943 pasn §15
"SUOIII9]]03 5 00G-3- 3PIMAIUNGCD PJUBYUD 0] SS9I08 PEY SIUDpPISaU
1Bl @4nsua 03 pasn sem Ajuno) a8uel ul Suipun) swil-suo ay}

:8uipunj 81e15 BW-BUQ JO BsN

"Aj[Bo1UDJ108] 3]qR.]IeA. S931/AUDS JIBYL pue sauelql SuoqySisu 1noge
uoneunopu 91ep oy dn m:.m..;mr_ AQ peiusuaq Apunwwos ay| sauerqi|
$,A1UNG2 syl noydnoayz AjjE21UCIINI|D B|R|IBAR S92IN0S3I |BI0]
noge uonewsolul Supew Ag sJaqusW US3M1Sq SUOEIIUNLILICT
181194 paUsiso) pue Jjeis Ag psiepdn Ajensal sem Aiopsag
32JN0S$3Y ULUQ Uy "pIuwelulew pue palepdn sem alIsgam $15 ayl

"Pjua YSnoaya sa[ul s300q-3 000°0C

JDA0 pRIDAIRP §1S 'S300Q-8 104 puewWwap 2yl Ajjeradse a3IALes
AlaAl@p ay1 4o [BOS B S1 pUBWIIP JOWOISND puk uolieldadxs
ay1 Sunesy "siaquiswt walsAs 1oj Ajuond doy e st AealeQg

WwinlsAg
Ateaqr
ogenueg




"$1S00 PEIYLSA0 PUB ‘SOUBUIIUIBLL SDIYIA AIDAIBP ‘RIS AlaAlap 3Y1 10 yonwi 5o} pred A2unod apISIanY
"SI UOWILOD B 3ieyS OYM SI3UISW pue|ul aAl) 01 A1sAlap J0 23502 23 Jo uojrod Jofew 2yt pazipisgns WalsAS AJesqiT AJunoD) apisiaAly pueful

'salJeJdql] 66-67 UYiBuaJls 01 syoafoud
papsau yonw sue g Bulpuny y$1) apISIN0 a1am s21dol 2yl JO 1SO "S81LoLd SSNISIp 01 SWISAS XIS [|8 A papusne sem doysyiom y :66-61

"$H00GOIPNE PUE $}00g3 3|GEPEOJUMOP 10} UCdIIISANS BALIQIBAQ PRIBYS Y
‘-1 PUB ‘D]GER|IBAR 213UM ANAIIDBUUOD SPIAGId 0} J9PIO Ul S3IIELG] BU] ||B J0) UOIIISUU0D 19uWia1u] oignd aleledasy e
"3NPJaAC B4 SWS1] UayM JO S[CE[IBAR St p|oy pajsanbau
B UBYM MOLD| Wdy] 19] 03 suo.jed sjjed os|e pue “Jaquinu gQg Ue BJA SWal mauaJ 03 U] (e 03 suosied smojje yoiym 32iales suoydaaly e
S0[RIRY) 55900y 21|qNd 01 S5923y e
ods|qQ sInT ues ul J9AI3s 3y 03 sulp[INg AJBIqI] 7 WO SUOIIDBUUOD JIOMIBU BY] e
:J0y pied spuny jedo] :pjoo yoe|g

ISOILAIIE PBpUN YSTI-UON

‘suojjeziuedio Jisy3 01 SZUIABS S 0} 8N|2 puURGPROI|

YUM pPIeMIO) SAOLL O] WISIUBYIDLW & PaleaJtd pue [Blluelsqns

sem Aleaqi] yoes 1oy sSuiaes ay (vdD yum Ajdwon pue Jaqj wayl ;
1O ||B) saLeIq] 119y 0] 218J-3 dn 135 03 JUBYNSUOD e UM paxIom
Sauelqi| ayl "(JIN3ID) pueqpeosg 2yl 01 SuDIUUOD 10 uvoniedpiue
Ut @1et-8 3|i} 03 saleuqI] Jsquisw g yum 30afoad 1oy1d e pip DS

:3uipuny s3e1S BWIL-dUQ JO s

‘210U

Uanw pue ‘speyd saay pue sauy ‘sjesodoud 104 3senbau ‘suondiosap "}S02 32NP3aJ 03 S|PPOW AIBAI[2P DAIRBUIDY|E JOPISUOD 01 (o7108)
qof jo seaJe ul sje19p YyuMm salleiqi| ayy isisse o3 paisod aq S3NUIU0D )TDS 1500 JIMO| B 3A3IYoE 0] Japiaoud syt pagueyd WI3ISAS

[ItA UORBLULIOLU| "SBRIQ] J3qIBLW U32MIDQ UOIIBI[UNWIWOD BIUBYUD 27105 PuE pauwiioyiad sem $1502 1Nd 01 [9poLU AJBAIDP dY1 Aleaqn
01 padwends Ajp1a[dwod Suraq s| 31SqaM Iy "WDISAS Asalpp JO JURWISSaSSE Uy "SI3qUIsW DDS 2yl 104 saoud dol syl BluJloL R

841 y3nouyy susquiawi 3125 Suowle Suimols sielatew 1day spuny v JO 3U0 se AJaAl[ap palliuspl SBY |I2UN0D DAIRIISIUIWPE 3y [ WI2yInoes




ST %0 EuEanten.mm JOULTY WSISAS

. THELS §0D

pue 101es139] J12yl yum Suizeaw e puslie 01 105 yum dn paudis Aleiq)] yoes aiom ‘paledied ssuelql] 1SO0W 1843 10afoad s Ut Ul Aeq D10S
-aAne1sdood e se pa1sjdwod 2q o1 sweidoud pue spafold ajqissod ssnasip 01 dousyiom e Uy patedidilied 1010811 LSS (RLISS

*SIUBPISaJ UCI[JIW € J3A0 s, A1uno?) a8uel() aAl9s 19119¢ 03 UOIJIP J1891e41s B Suiies uo paxJom ‘Ajyiuowig 19w ‘Bal3elsdood syl ysijgelssas o1
PANUITUOD 937HWW0Y BAILNDBXT S5 SYL "SPUN} ySD-Uou Aq papiacid sem SaLeIqI STS (|8 US3MID( UOITRIIUNLIIOD BAIJDSLS UlRIULBW 03 SWIY JJels

Juswdimba pue ‘@oeds 8210 1509 SUOIEIIUNWWIOI9[9]

151502 PESYI9AC 10) SE [|3M SB SBIIBAIRP S AJBIQI| 4194l paA[e2aL pue pasedsld 3eys yels Joy pred saeaqi] Jaquis iy "Adeaqy AzunoD

a8ueu( Aue 1e sjeriaiew Ateagl) ajgnd 4o doup o1 3|ge aie spuapisal AJuno) s8ueIQ 1Y S3INSUS YIIYM “WIISAS AIDAI[SP pupl-ul §1S 8yl :odenues
"SUQIID9}|02 paieys 01 559208 [Enba (ETT) S9YIURIQ 1Y) PUB SBLIBICI] JOqUIBW B SMOJ[B UYd1ym ‘paulelulew si S| P4eys ¥ SIAIS

‘lloa se wioyleid joogs pjug syl ul aredioiped sarieddgy did TV .mmtmiz J3qQUISW S} 104 UOID3[|0D Joogs padeys e sapinoid d1d

SHoMIsU Z.mx_mu 3] 03 PUBCPEO.( BIA ALUAIIDSUUOD J134] Ul ISBAUL O3 Spuny [eJI0] SUISn Os[e 2Je Sallelql]

“+PONUI] PUB B4BYS PLIOA DTDO Suipnioul ‘Aj{eD0] S301AI3S UBO| AJRIGI-193UI PUy SSLIRIGIT 1S921AIDS UeDT] AdRiqi-4au]

_ _ "salIaAlap jrUORIppe Wawaddns 01 {Qo0‘zS) Buipuny jed0f pasn as|e (sA01D
JMIEY pue ABIBIUO) SSBIGY DYIO N oM “Atsnlep yoem-e-Aep-g aaey ued Asyz os spuny [e20} Ul §09°89ES pied STd ul sauesql] JIdquiaiy 1d1d

"PUBWISQ U0 S31IAjRUY “9° ‘S924N0Sal SisAjeur eep pue (421sdl|{ pue ojulz) suonduasgns

sauwizeSew auluo Suiseyoind Fuipnpul ‘s921N0s1 paLBYS 10] sIaquiaLu swalsAs Jo sdnoud 1o walsAs aunue ue se Jsmod SulAng 1Byl mc_mml_.m.;m_ uo
Supjiom AjJURISUOD DJB ADY L "UOIIDD]|02 J0OgD SALPIIAQ dnoud e o5 01 Adeaqr], ut 9jedpriied soueIql JaquISW U JO Auely "Aleiql| JBGUISW YoBS
10} (000°TS) Juawdo(aAap yels 1o poddns sapiacid SN “Aydei8oad Jo 1unole 1SeA B SISA0D pUB WDISAS BANEISH00D JSqUDW-TY B 51 STN 3I9NYMON



Exhibit B

SiFLAd AUAROE DEOPLIOM (9D WAJSAS

Jepowt exods/qny welsAs Aealsp obeig] ueg Jo 3,._3005
SBURIqY JaGqLUSLY LG SUBA ABAIS] )

JBAJSS BLY WOJ) SSIUN0D AUE sjzlaush 6} Aiqe oy} sey JeBUo| Ou PUB ([BLIS MBYJS)U| 104 S0IAI8S

pNo2 JOSOIW B O} psuohisUel SIAPS "igeeaeun sabessaw 2uoyd Jo Jaquunu uo [212p auyj Bupewr walshs 4|0A B 0} STIAMS paULoRIsuUeRn AJUng) ousald obe siesh om] )
uRA AlBnlap WalsAs Alelgr] AUNOD apISSAlY @

Bunasy o1 oDy

yiomisu §Tdi wooss] sy ybnowy Buinfl sfessaiu Jo Jaquiny au} suiiaisp o) ajqeul Ney

PASM 10N - NN

BUILLIBISD O] 2|qBUN IO ‘BG8IIBAY 10N - YN

150700, %6'E %1L°G %02 %0 6% %00 [L¥8'62979 %00 %8 %3l [0EL9LL SIV.LOL
1959/ NN NN %] %66 AN Joer'oe ON %EB %L |¥re0z 0708
000°8¥ 0%l %l %C %0G AN (00711 NN %E9 %LE  |006 PERER
ZeTLL %06 %S %S %0 AN Jee0y NN %.L9 %eE (0522 OOVIINYS
009728 NN %0 %0 %S %I6  |000°G20°L VN VN VN [gumowiun SIATS
0Z9°9Zt %10 %00 % | %69 %0,  |¥68°160°C NN VN %001 [sZ87 dd
60} 7ET NN %0GL %0°G %0708 NN [6557182°L NN N %00l |82l LINHIHON
¥00'L¥ (2)%86 %S0 %S0 %1 NN |[ez6erl @%} %09 %6E  |0¥e0l ANYINI
000°LZ AN NN %1 %66 NN (g8 NN %9 %9e  [£02 66-67
61L6°2G %S0 %S 0 %e %.6 NN {ZL0%VS @VN %8 %3L  |[0VE6L9 a109 Mov1g
SSOI[OAA IEliiTe} Sdn lrew AonpQ UBA (swai) IETTS) liew-3 xeq  [(sabessop)
Aaneg SN peloen WBIsAS PEOPIO AN 1|ula] suoyd PEOPIOMA WIBISAS
I Ag pefeaes). -uoD AsaeQ “WWwon
SOl [ENIOY obes swalsAg AleAlfeq [ealsAud lenoy sbesn swaisAs sUoHEIILNLILINIRS | jenoy

SPECPUOM pue SPOUISIN 80IAI8S GL7L0T
weiboid Alaajeq R SUOREOIUNWIWIOY) WSISAS




Exhibit C

"I9AIDS Sy} WIOJ) SjUNoD Aue s1elaeusb o1 Aj|ige ay) aaey 155U0| OU pUE [[BLIS MOIAIDIL] JO) 8IAISS PROD JOSOUDIN B 0] psuolisues §IAPS
‘ajqe[eaeun sabessatu suoyd 1o JSgLINU Uo Jie1ap 2yl Buniew walsAs 410A B O STAMS paucsuel) AunoD) ousald 210z Ul :STArS

a|qe|lBAY JON - VN

‘2007 1snbny Ul pieog syl Aq percidde suopepiosuod We)sAS 10 JNSsl B SB SLUEU WHSAS MauU Japun palos|ied PROMIOM AISAIB(] % UOREDIUNWWOD B1/600%.x

AloISIl Je8h DL,
0c1L'9LL v8cegl 205°861 Buipund oN $EG'PLE'L  9LO'0BS'Z  6S8°0LZC  £88'€LO'T  £€98°098'L  0L'98L°L VLIOL
ve'oz ¥N 628°6e 0le'202 £8L0F9 2708

. AR R L6Z'y 00v'Y pol'e -31V1S HINOS
- 0S¥'s 00Z'9 000°0Z Gl6'L SIAS
006 0oo0‘ce 000°€E §i5°12 059°0¢ 00122 00’6 0S6'vC 90S' v vdu3as
(1o TAFA 0522 . SvL'g 98.L'y L8¥ 12l 00S°00) QOVILNYS
N vN VN GEL'658 865058 §90°L¥9 008°¢02 lojslepelny 05z'8. v SIAPS
w 00g'9se 052°90¢ $20'v82 g€z 182 S1d
529°C 80€'C 0zz'e 2eS Vit 980'eve d1d
e7A ST 09¢ ogr’es v12'65 . 13NHIHON
. 6L6°CY ¥59°g¢ GeY LL 62LvE 31¥1S HIHON
- 005°19 07565 00261 ras Avd HLHON
e 00S°LL 004721 00008 000°9L STAN
e 00zZ'L 009'L 06Z'z oLe'l OVAION
. §/9°002 G/9°'002 Gl1'89% Lo0'0LE STON
ore‘0l 00g'6 0229 002'G LGLY 1821 £/8°C VN 1¥9'y ANV INI
€02 YN G9S 6ze 0.6°¢ 048'¢ 046°¢ 00602 0L1°G 66-61
OrE'6.49 FLLLPL 718'6Z1 1Z0€29 ¥95°299 9/5'2¢8 y9£'€Y9 LG8e8e 861'9.Y aloco Movid
. 000 002'C 0go'e 899'c SIvd
SLivLOZ YLELOZ €LiZIoz ZHLL0Z LL/0LOZ 0L/600Z 60/8002 80/2002 10/9002 90/5002
| NILSAS

sefiessap (Bnoy

e

+AHOLSIH dYOTHHOM NOILVIINNIWNOD INILSAS




Exhibit D

"800Z *Z 1snbny uo panoidde UCHEP|OSU0D WBISAS JO NSal B SE $BLUBL LUSISAS MU Jepun palosjjal Peopuom AIsAIeQ R UOIEIUNLULLOD 01/600Z..

Aoy seah 01,

Zy8'GZ9'0  628'c9L's  90v/ZL'8 Bupund oN £+9'666'ZL €61°'G€9°7L SLE'POYCL $89°G8Z°LL G8SOPO'0L  LLL'6BY'6 V101l
0e1°02 el g ord £0£'69 i ANFA] L2y ve 0708
- gL0'8 Gsz'L GSZ'l GsZ ) ILVIS HINOS
- 082'9T 052’22 000°LE 6/Z°'1e SIAS
002°1L G.Z'8 £85°/¢ 196'051 G89'eSL ZG9'8SL  gsz'gel 29t LEL 8Lyl YHEES
920y 120y . ¥96'6 00t} 000°¢) 000¢lL O9OVILNYS
000'620°L  ¥PS'SSLL  SEVLGELL 0/8°9SL°L  909°19L'L  PP0'99L  188%8L  112°LLS 0zl'esy SIArS
- 800°808°C 92S'€09'C 008'982'C  PPS'L9Z'T Sd
68°L60'C  PEG'LOR'E  092°CSLE 88G'E80'C  859¥80C d1d
BSS'L8L'L  OFB'€89'C  00.°€89C 08Z'/¥E'0  ¥SY0.6'9 L3INHIHON
. SgzZ'eVL'L  L2L°06S 6S1°e¥S 20¥'G87 | ALVLES HIMON
. B2LYELY  ZOPVPS'Y Q0Z'ELB'E  968FFLYY| AVE HAMON
- /S2'980°L 00£'8¥0°'L  29Z°Z8’ 000°9.Z SIAN
- GZO'CLL 00G'ELL 089°ZL) 8607 L1 OvaOh
. 28799 616'08 181°¢9 - £2e'/9 SToW
€'yl 69205  2S0'9 G¥9'8/7 GBE'BLL'L 152082 16Z'8eZ 126°ZG1 10978 GNYINI
£92'¢ zee'l zZ09'y geg'eee 009'v9¢  Gig'szy  Gi8'6Zh  §.9°GTy 00Z°0Ly 66-6¥
L10'%PS £ro'sZy L16°L8S Z0L1°12S°)  pi€'9EQ'L  SBE'VELL 6ZL'96L°L 2Ze'8E0’L 060°968 aloD MoOv1d
. - 099'ze ov6'ee TA 8e9'ce SITve

SLyL0g yLIELOZ  El/ZL0Z ZL/Lioz LL0LOZ 04/8002  60/800C  80//00Z  10/900Z 90/500Z
NFLSAS

paianaq AfedIsAy Swa) [enjoy

*AHOLSIH AYOTHYHOM AHIAITIA WILSAS




Exhibit E

Sﬁmmary of System Administration Expenditures for FY 2014/15

Syétem CLS'A Loc:cll TOtF:ﬂ

‘ Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures
BLACK GOLD $ 15,700 $ 341,142 $ 356,842
49-99 24,064 2,363 26,427
INLAND 61,428 0 61,428
NORTHNET 107,692 53,388 161,080
PLP 109,750 278,730 388,480
SIVLS 38,593 159,479 198,072
SANTIAGO 31,615 0 31,615
SERRA 43,406 475 43,881
SCLC 113,202 318,666 431,868
TOTAL $ 545,450 $1,154,243 $1,699,693

LSTA funds spent on System Administration PLP $75,099

LSTA funds spent on System Administration NORTHNET $5,238




e,

Exhibit F

Summary of Communications and Delivery Expenditures for FY 2014/15

System CLS.A LOC?.]. TOtE.ll
Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures

BLACK. GOLD $ 104,552 $ 144,536 $ 249,088
49-99 96,255 0 96,255
INLAND 245,714 | 0 245,714
NORTHNET 541,770 143,615 685,385
PLP 438,998 : 2,904 441,902
-SJVLS 154,369 762,361 916,730
SANTIAGO 126,462 0 126,462
SERRA 173,622 _ 0 173,622
SCLC 452,808 0 452,808
TOTAL $2,334,550 $1,053,416 $3,387,966




LOCAL MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS TO CLSA SYSTEM SERVICES

FY 2014115

CL.SA System Communications and Delivery

Exhibit G

Percent of CLSA Percent of Total

System Expenditures for Local Funds for Expenditures for

C&D C&Dh C&D
BLACK GOLD 42% 58% $ 249,088
49-99 100% 0% 06,255
INLAND 100% 0% 245,714
NORTHNET 79% 21.0% 685,385
PLP 99% 1% 441,902
SJVLS 17% 83% 916,730
SANTIAGO 100% 0% 126,462
SERRA 100% 0% 173,622
SCLC 100% 0% 452,808
TOTAL PERCENT 69% 31% 100%
TOTAL EXPEND. 3 2,334,650 | § 1,053,416 | $ . 3,387,966
2014/15 Expenditures:

CLSA Lacal LSTA Total
Administration 545,450 (30%) 1,154,243 (65%) 80,337 (5%) 1,780,030
Comm. & Delivery 2,334,550(69%) 1,053,418 (31%) 3,387,966
Total 2,880,000 (51%) 2,207,659 (46%) 80337 (3%) $5,167,906

System FProgram Local Member Condributions 14-15




DOCUMENT 6
INFORMATION

02/01/16 08:32 AM
RN 16 07163 02 PAGE 1
An act to amend Sections 18701, 18703,' 18710, 18724, 18731, 18743,
and 18745 of, and to repeal Sections 18732, 18744, 18751, and 18765
of, the Education Code, relating to libraries, and making an appropriation

therefor, to take effect immediately, bill related to the budget.




02/01/16 08:32 AM
RN 16 07163 02 PAGE 2

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Section 18701 of the Education Code is amended to read:
18701. ‘The Legislature finds and declares that it is in the interest of the people

of the state to-dnsure ensure that all people have free and convenient access to all library

resources and services that might enrich their lives, regardless of where they live or of
the tax base of their local-gevernment:

Fhis-government. This finding is based on the recognition that:

(a) The public library is a pritary source of information, recreation, and education
to persons of all ages, any location, or any economic circumstance. |

(b) The expansion of knowledge and the increasing complexity of our society
etcate-needs creates a need for matetials and information that-ge goes beyond the ability
of any one library to provide.

(¢) The public libraries of California are supported primarily by local taxes. The
ability of local governments to provide adequate service is dependent on the taxable
wealth of each local jurisdiction and varies widely throughout the state.

() Public libraries are unable to bear the greater costs of meeting the exceptional
needs of many residents, including people with disabilities, non-English-speaking and
limited-English-speaking persons, those who are confined to home or in an institution,
* and those who are economically disadvantaged.

(&) The effective sharing of resources and services among the libraries of
California requires an ongoing commitment by the state to-compensate-tibrariesfor

format,

N




02/01/16 08:32 AM
RN 16 07163 02 PAGE 3

SEC. 2, Section 18703 of the Education Code i§ amended to read:

18703. In adopting this chapter, the Legislatufe declares that its policy shall
bex be as follows:

(a) To 1'eafﬁ1'n;1 the principle of local control of the government and administration

of public libraries, and to affirm that the provisions of this chapter apply only to libraries
authorized by their jurisdictions to apply té participate in the prograrms authorized by
this act.

(b) To require no library, as a condition for receiviqg_funds or services under
this chapter, to acquire or exclude any specific book, periodical, film, reconiing,» picture,
or other material, or any specific equipment, or to acquire or exclude any classification
of books or other material by author, subject matter, or type.

(c) To encourage the adequate financing of libraries from local sources, with
state aid to be furnished to supplement, not supplant, local funds.

(d) To 'encoufage service to the underserved of all ages.

(e) To encourage and enable the sharing of resources between libraries.

tH-Toreimburse-equitablyany-participating Hbrary for-services-it-provides

beyond-tsjurisdictionif a-publiclibraty et nota ot -public-libraty; beyond-its-normal
elientete:
2

(D) To ensure public participation in carrying out the intent of this act.

SEC. 3. Section 18710 of the Education Code is amended to read:




_ 02/01/16 08:32 AM
RN 16 07163 02 PAGE 4

18710. Asused in this chapter, the following terms have the following meanings,

unless the context otherwise indicates or unless specific exception is made:

(a) “Academic library” means a library established and maintained by a college
ot university to meet the needs of its students and faculty, and others by agreement,

(b) “Act” means the California Library Services Act.

(c) “Cooperative library system’ means a public library system that consists of
two of more juris dictioﬁs entering into a written agreement to implement a regional
program in accordance with this chapter, and-whieh; that, as of the effective date of
this chapter, was designated a library system under the Public Library Services Act of
1963 or was a successor to-sueh-a that library system.,

(d) “Direct loan” means the lending of a book or other item directly to a barrower.

(e} “Equal access” means the right of the residents of jurisdictions that are
members of a cooperative library system to use on an equal basis with one another the
services and loan privileges of any and all other members of the same system.

(f) “Independent public library” means a public library that is not a member of
a sys'tclam.' '

(g) “Interiibraty loan” means the Jending of a book or other item from one library
to another as the result of a user request for the item.
G-Interibraryreference™means-the-providing-ofinformation-by-onctibrary

oy atiothertibeacy-or-reference-eente i'-“"ui

N



02/01/16 08:32 AM
RN 1607163 02 PAGE 5

¢h) “Jurisdiction” means & county, city and county, city, or any district that is
authorized by law to provide public library services and that operates a public library.
P _

(i) “Libraries for institutionalized persons” means libraries maintained by

institutions for the purpose of serving their resident populations.

E]E) uP%Et'H]H]EHEE” ﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁiﬂiﬁ ﬂ'fgﬁf@pﬂft“ﬁliﬁfﬂ Eﬁst‘ﬂsﬂ 'l’.’.ﬂﬁff‘f ’Hf‘[ s ]
bmwmﬁwmwmﬁéﬂceﬂyhﬂ&&ﬁmtﬁﬂmbﬁmﬂm
herturisdictons:
s

(j) “Public library” means a library, or two or more libraries, that is operated by

a single public jurisdiction and that serves its residents free of charge,

)

(k) “School library” means an organized collection of printed and audiovisual
materials that satisfies all of the following criteria: |

(D Is administel-’ed as a unit,

(2) Is located in a designated place.

(3) Makes printed, audiovisual, and other materials as well as necessary
equipment and services of a staff accessible to elementary and secondary school pupils
and teachers,

€

(1) “Special library” means one maintained by an association, government service,

tescarch institution, learned society, professional association, museum, business firm,




02/01/16 08:32 AM
RN 16 07163 02 PAGE 6

industrial enterprise, chamber of commerce, or other organized-grotp;_group and the
greater part of their collections being in a specific field or subject,-esg= such as natural
sciences, economics, engineering, law, and history.

o)

(1) “Special Services Programs” means é project establishing or improving
' servicé to the underserved of all ages.

)

(1) “State board” means the California Library Setvices Board.

)

(0) “System” means a cooperative library system.

@

(p) “Underserved” means any population segment with exceptional service needs
not adequately met by traditional library service-patterns; patterns, including, but not
limited to, those persons who are geographically isolated, economically disadvantaged,
functionally illiterate, of non—English—speaking or limited-English-speaking ability,
shut=in;_homebound, or institutionalized, or who ate persons with disabilities.

)

(g} “Universal borrowing” means the extension by a public library of its direct

~ loan privileges to the eligible borrowers of all other public libraries.
SEC. 4, Section 18724 of the Education Code is amended to read:
18724. The duties of the state board shall be to adopt rules, regulations, and

general policies for the implementa‘tion of this chapter, In addition, the state board,

T



02/01/16 08:32 AM
RN 16 07163 02 PAGE 7

- consistent with the terms and provisions of this chapter, shall have the following powers
and duties:

(a) To direct the State Librarian in the administration of this chaptet.

(b) To review for its approval all annual proposals submitted under this chapter,

V7 Hy-submitbudget-§ . .

Department-of Bdueation:

)

{c) To expend the funds appropriated for the purpose of implementing the
provisions of this chapter.

©

(d) To require participating libraries and systems to prepare and submit any

reports and information-whieh_that ate necessary to carry out the provisions of this

chaptef, and to prescribe the form and maimer for providing-steh those reports and
information. ‘

Seetions-18735 18743 187445and 18765 Such-formulas-shatt-be-submitted-to-the
Bﬁp@%ﬂeﬁfﬁ%mﬁe—fefatjpiﬁvak

@ .

(e) To require that any public library participating in programs authorized by
this chapter provide access to its bibliographic tecords and materials location
information consistent with the legislative policy of encouraging the sharing of resources
between libraries,

SEC. 5. Section 18731 of the Bducation Code is amended to read:




02001716 08:32AM
RN 16 07163 02 PAGE 8

18731, Any-A California public library may participate in universal borrowing,
PublieHbraries A public library participating in universal borrowing-may shall not
exclude the residents of any jurisdiction maintaining a public library.-Public-libraries
thatineuranet-imbakmee-shall-be-reimbursed-for the-har il.iﬁg costs-of the-net-loans

{aySysterm-mombertibraties-and-ndependent-publie Hibraries:

%ﬁ[@mﬁm&pﬂ%ﬁe—%’ i rai’ieﬂ-‘thh—eaeh-ﬁ i thet:

SEC. 6. Section 18732 of the Education Code is repealed.

8732 two-ormore-publie-Hbrary-jurisdietions-wish-to-consolidate-their
Hbraries-intera-single-libeary-agency-an-establishmentgrant-in-the-annual- maxitmm
amount oftwenty-thousand-dollars-($20,000)-shall-be-made-to-the-hewly-consolidated
Bbrary-jutisdietion-for-eachof two-yearsy provided that notice-ofsaehconsolidations
Flod-with-the-State Libtatian-within-one-yoar-afior the-consolidation:

SEC. 7. Section 18743 of the Education Code is amended to read: |

18743. Each member library of a system shall provide equal access to all
residents of the area served by the system -Memberldibraries-that-tneur-a-netimbalance
shat-be reimbursedtbrough-the-system-for the-handling-eosts-of the- netoans-according
to-the-allocation-formula-developed-pursuant-to-subdivisten-(B-of Seetion 18724~

SEC. 8. Section 18744 of the Education Code is repealed.

H744-—Bach-member library-of a-systemshall bereimbursedthrouglh-the-system
to-coverhandling-costs;-exeluding-communicationand-delivery-costsrofeach

i

N



p—

02/01/16 08:32 AM
RN 16 07163 02 PAGE 9

SEC. 9. Section 18745 of the Education Code is amended to read:
18745, BEach system shall annually apply to the state board for funds for
intrasystem communications and delivery. Proposals shall be based upon the most

cost-effective methods of exchanging print and digital materials and information among

the member libraries,

SEC. 10. Section 18751 of the Education Code is repealed.

%%Hﬂienmﬁyﬁemﬁﬁysfem&eeﬂ&ehd&tﬁrgf&n%eﬁeﬂ-thmwajﬁdeﬂm
(—‘B%Gﬂ@@)—fm‘—eaeh—ef th&?wej‘ear&fﬁﬂewmg—ﬂieeeﬂaﬂhéaﬁwﬁ—shaﬂ—be—nmdmﬂ&e
ﬁewﬂjheensehda%ed—system—

SEC. 11. Section 18765 of the Education Code is repealed.

%—E&e&%&ﬁf@ﬂﬁa&%ﬁffﬁg&b}cﬁ%ﬁeﬁmﬁdﬁﬁw&hﬁwﬁeﬁfﬁr
torthe-atlocation-formula-developed- purstant to-subdiviston-(5-of- Section 18724 4o
%wrd&ehm&l—iﬂgmﬁ%faﬁbfafﬁmmﬁeﬂwwthebﬁﬁewﬁgﬁbf&yﬂﬂ
publiclibrary;execptfor the-interlibraryloans-made between-members-ef acooperative
library-systetnasprovided-n-Section18744-Libraries-cligible for-intedibrary loan
retirbursement-under-thisseetton-shaltinelude publie libraries; libratics-eperated-by
pﬁb%%@h@ﬁ%&eﬁehe&dﬂﬂ%&ﬁﬁafmpmwd—by—pubh&eﬁ}hge&m%
Hibraries-eperatedby publicagencies for institutionalized persons;and-librarics-operated

by nonprofit-private-edueational-or-research-institutions—oans to-ehigible-Hbrarios by




02/01/16 08:32 AM
RN 16 07163 02 PAGE 16

pﬁbheﬁbmﬁe#ﬁm}lﬂ}s&b&mfm%uﬂe&aeeefdmg{&ﬂ&&aﬂeﬁ&wﬂfmmme{epe&

SEC, 12, The sum of three miltion dollars ($3,000,000) is hereby appropriated
from the General Fund to the California State Library for allocation pursuant to the
California Library Services Act (Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 18700) of Part
11 of Division 1 of Title 1 of the Education Code).

SEC. 13. 'This act is a bill providing for appropriations related to the Budget
Bill within the meaning of subdivision () of Section 12 of Article TV of the California
Constitution, has been identified as related to the hudget in the Budget Bill, and shall

take effect immediately.

AT



02/01/16 08:32 AM
RN 16 07163 02 PAGE 1

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL’S DIGEST

Bill No.
as introduced,

General Subject: California Library Services Act.

The California Library Services Act establishes the California Library Services
Board and provides that its duties include, among other things, adopting rules,
regulations, and general policies relating to the implementation, of the act.

This bill would revise and recast the act, including, among other things, removing
from the board the powers to annually submit budget proposals as part of the annual
budget of the Department of Education and to develop formuylas for the equitable
allocation of reimbursements to public libraries, as defined, for providing specified
library services,

This bill would appropriate $3,000,000 from the General Fund to the California
State Library for allocation pursuant to the act.

This bill would declare that it is to take effect immediately as a bill providing
for appropriations related to the Budget Bill

Vote: majority. Appropriaﬁon: yes. Fiscal committee: yes. Stﬁte-mandated

local program; no,




MICHAEIMEIDILLON
&PASSOCIATESHINC!

925 L STREET » SUITE 1400 = SACRAMENTO, CA 95814
(916) 448-2196 « FAX (916) 448-4808

The Honorable Marty Block, Chair

Senate Budget Subcommittee Number 1 on Education Finance
State Capitol

Sacramento, CA. 95814

RE: STATE LIBRARY BUDGET: Item 6120-211-0001 and 6120-215-0001
California Library Services Act — Support Governor’s Budget
Hearing date: Thursday, March 17, 2016

Dear Senator Block,

The California Library Association (CLA), representing the state’s librarians, library employees,
library students, friends group members and trustees, is in support of the proposed funding in
Governor Brown's January Budget, pertaining to the California Library Services Act.
Consideration of this funding will be before you during your hearing on Thursday, March 17,
2016.

The Governor's January Budget proposes for the California Library Services Act (CLSA):
* Adding $1.8 million in ongoing funding to the current $1.8 million baseline.
¢ Adding $3 million in one-time funding for the purpose of allowing the systems to
explore more creative and effective ways to loan and share materials between
libraries (e.g. “digital delivery”).

CLA is grateful to you and your Senate Budget Subcommittee colleagues for your leadership in
approving a major library funding package last year, which included $4 million in ongoing funding
for the California Library Services Act. While this augmentation moved forward to the Budget
Conference Committee, the $4 million for the CLSA ultimately was eliminated by the Governor
during negotiations with the Leadership. During the Fall, CLA has had very productive
conversations with the Department of Finance, and the DOF has spent a considerable amount of
time touring libraries in California and speaking to many library directors. As a result of those
discussions, we are pleased to see the January Budget reflects a funding commitment to the
California Library Services Act — both in the form of one-time and ongoing dollars.

You may recall that the CLSA was created in the 1970’s and it contained an important function
known as “Transaction Based Reimbursement,” wherein participating public libraries, in eight
regional systems, agree to share their books and materials. The benefits of this seamless
exchange were many: the law’s intent was to encourage a cooperative loaning and lending
model, wherein a patron could, for example, check out a book in a county in which they work and
return it in a neighboring county where they live. A van/truck would return the book to the original
loaning library. This sharing model saved libraries from having to purchase identical collections,
and instead they could focus on collections that fit the needs of their particular community. Most
importantly, when there is sufficient funding in the baseline for this program, it incentivizes
libraries to continue this agreement to loan and lend. Without this funding in place - e.g. several



years ago when the Budget “trigger” wiped out $12.9 million in this fund - a few libraries left the
systems and one began charging as much as $80 per person to non-residents for library cards.
Such charges go against the very essence of the CLSA'’s and the public library’s mission, which
is to serve as the “great equalizer” for all California residents.

The $1.8 million in ongoing funding that the Governor proposes in his Budget will restore a
portion of the CLSA general operations for the systems. Additionally, the $3 million in one-time
funding that the Governor proposes for the CLSA, will promote greater “digital delivery” options
for public libraries, such as moving more eBooks between libraries, digitizing important or
historical documents that can be shared among jurisdictions, and various other new innovations
that the libraries are exploring.

On a related note, the California Library Association would like to continue the current momentum
that is underway for the Governor's library broadband project. As you will recall, the Governor
and this subcommittee have been very supportive of funding that will attempt to connect most of
the public libraries in the state to a high-speed, broadband “backbone” operated by the
Corporation for Education Network Initiatives in California. With last year's $4 million in one-time
money that was provided for connection grants, 39 jurisdictions will be eligible for funds to '
connect their central/main branches, and a portion of their branches. The same robust interest is
expected in 2016-17, which would warrant another $4 million in one-time funds in order to move
forward with Phase 3. As such, CLA respectfully requests your consideration of an
augmentation of $4 million in one-time dollars, should there be money available at May Revision
time. Clearly, there is need to have high-functioning broadband connections and access at public
libraries so that patrons can take advantage of the “digital delivery” referenced above, as well as
apply for jobs on the computers, compile a resume, research the Affordable Care Act or other
health-related issues, or use online homework tutoring.

Lastly, the library community would like to continue to seek your support of additional funding for
the California Library Literacy Program. This very successful program is available at public
libraries for adults who have never learned to read for various reasons. Last year during the
discussions surrounding the AB 86 adult education consortiums, it became clear that the public
libraries are serving a tremendous number of “pre-5" grade level” adult students. (The schools
and community colleges will accept adult education students only if they are Grade 5 ready.) In
light of this workload issue, CLA requests some modest additional funding ($1-2 million) to
continue to bolster this baseline, which currently stands at $4.8 million. One literacy director at
the Santa Barbara library recently said, “The increased CLLS funding, along with other local
funds, is helping to make possible the staffing of our first-ever physical location, an Adult Literacy
Center in our Central Library, along with computers in that space, additional books, and increased
tutor training.” The Placentia library said, “We are purchasing more literacy workbooks so they
can be issued to the [learner], rather than copying pages every week."

Thank you for your continued support and leadership on behalf of the public libraries of California.
We appreciate your consideration of CLA’s 2016-17 Budget request.

el wa (st Dt

Michael F. Dillon Christina Dillon DiCaro
CLA Lobbyist CLA Lobbyist

Sincerely,




cC.

Senate Budget Subcormnmittee No. 1 on Education Finance Members
Senator Mark L.eno, Senate Budget Chair

Senator Jim Nielsen, Senate Budget Vice Chair

Greg Lucas, California State Librarian

Anita Lee, Senate Budget Committee

Cheryl Black, Senate Republican Caucus

Christian Osmena and Jack Zwald, Department of Finance

Jason Constantouros, Legislative Analyst's Office




